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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSO REPORT

Honorable Members of the
Board of County Commissioners
Gulf County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the-typginess
activities, each major fund, and thggregate remaining fund information of Gulf County, Florida, (the

fi C o wn asyof and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively compr iimstle tablhed Count
contents.
Management 6s Responsibility for the Financi al St a

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted itrfied States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Audit or s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable financial audits contained iBovernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements &iofrmaterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financi al statement s. The procedures select
assessment of the riskf material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor con
and fair presentation of the financial statements in omldesign audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of e X |

internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ficisat and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the busiyyessactivities, each major fund,

and the aggregate remaining fund information of Gulf County, Florida, as of September, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective



budgetary comp#&on for the general fund, SHIP fund, and the public improvement fund, for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting princih es generally accepted in the United Stat
di scussion and analysis and schedules of funding
insurance other post employment benefits plan on page 59 betpres® supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the Urtitiedes of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with managementodés responses to our
knowledge wenbtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion

or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and
Budget Circular A133,Audits of States, Local Governments, and-Roofit Organizationsand Chapter

10.550 Rule of the Auditor Genéraf the State of Floridaand the combining nonmajor fund financial
statementsrepresented for purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and vieddeom and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additionalrpcedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordancediitiy standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standarsl

In accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dalede 9, 2014

on our consideration of the u | f C o u n tipternal Edntook oved finénsial reporting and on our

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intérobbeer
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance witBovernmen Auditing Standardsn consideringGulf County, Floridé s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
June 9, 2014



MANAGEMENTOS DI BNDASIALYSN



Management 6s Discussion and Anal ysi s

The Management of the Board of County Commissioners of Gulf County (County) has prepared the
following discussion and analysis to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b)
provideanoverd w and analysis of the Countyds financ
Countyods financi al position, (d) identify mat
and (e) highlight significant issues in individual funds. Becauséformation contained in the
Management 6s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) i
events and conditions, it should be considere

The information presented this financial statement is perhaps best understood when it is considered
in the broader perspective of the environment in which the County operates.

General Information

Gulf County was incorporated in 1925 and is located in northwest Florida on lfiaf Glexico.
With an area of 557 square miles and a population otiputrl6,000, Gulf County is a sparse, low
density county. Gulf County is a noncharter county governed by the Board of County Commissioners.

The Board of County Commissioners (Boaiglthe legislative and policy making body of the County.
Each of the five commissioners is elected from a separate district. Annually, the Board elects a
chairman that serves as the presiding officer. Elections are held every two years for staggered f
year terms.The Boardemploysthe County Administrator to implement the policies of the Board,
provide organizational leadership and direct business and administrative procedures.

Gulf County provides a broad range of services, including law enferdgfine protection; rescue;
emergency medical services; maintenance of streets, highways, bridges and traffic signals; parks;
libraries; limited water and sewer systems; and certain other community and human services.

Financial Highlights

0 The Count yods -widenetpositigndecreasedder $11798,257rom September
30, 2.2, to September 30, 2013 The Count y §p et @tcadosiibnd g7idrse N
decreased by2i1,011from the balance at the end of the prior year and only comprise 1% of
t he Countpobiton t ot al net

O«

During the year endeSleptember 30,2013 t he Countyds general fu
revenues by $280,804 however, note the favoribvariance when compared to budget as
shownonpagé9of t he attached financial statement
results in which trehenue€xceededxpanditurape BB LMW1 f und
which was also favorable when comga to budget.

O«

For the year endefleptember 30,2013 t he Countydés capital asse
depreciatiordecreasety $2,848,036 or by 6%



O«

O«

O«

The Countybs pr oper t2007 at $2876/5530F 3 withesliglkdactons n 2
in 20072008 and 2002009. The recently approved 2013 tax roll has a Total County

Assessed Value of $2,024,635,155, which is an increase over the 2012 Total County Assessed
Value of $2,017,307,707This is depicted later in a graph underx fubheadingdssessed

Value of Property and Millage Rates.

Gulf County, as well as the rest of Florida and the United States, is continuing to experience a
slowdown in housing starts and real estate salbs. declining local economy is marked with

new foreclosures and high unemployment ratperty values have continued to decrease
through the 2012 tax roll, but have a slight increase, (less than 1%), with the 2013 tax roll.

The County consolidated several departments at the beginning of the@DlLfiscal year in
an effort to conserve funds and operate more efficiently. The departments that are now
included in the consolidation are: work crews, maintenance, mosquitol¢céendfill, public
works, and road department.

Tourism is still an important economic factor in the County. It continues to be affected
adversely by the downturn in the national econotdgwever, Bedl'ax revenues have
increased and this trend ajppgto be continuing into 2642014.

Sacred Heart Hospital on the Gulf, the new hospital located in Gulf County, part of the
SacredHeart Health System, is now operational, opening in March 2010. The County
adopted by ordinance in 2005 aatetionary ¥ cent small county surtax to help fund the
constructiorof thehospital. An intedocal agreement was entered into with the City of
Wewabhitchka and th€ity of Port St. Joe whereby the County will receive all funds
generated from the smalbunty surtax and such funds will be used as set forth in the
agreement. The additional tax was effective January 1, 2006.

The County is beginning to assess and evaluate its current economic situation for use in the
2014-2015 budget process.

To offset declining property values the County has the option of raising the millage rate up to
the statutory maximum, 10 mills. This offset could be a combination of some increase to
millage rates, further reductions in present funding levels to outsideiageand elimination

of nonessential servicesThe County voted to increase the countywide millage rate for the
20132014 budget. This increase was primarily due to the need for equipment replacement,
retirement expense increasasd other factors messary to continue the same level of service.



Overview of the Financial Statements

Management 6s di scussion and analysis serves a
statements. The basic financial statements consist of thrg@oents:

1. Governmenwide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the financial statements

In addition, this report presents certain required supplementary information.
Governmentwide Financial Statements

The governmentvide financial statements provide both skertm and longerm information about

the Countybés overall financi al Cc esactbibusiness. i n a
Thesestatements combine and consolidate governmentabfsnd c ur r ent f i naterm i al
expendable resources) with capital assets andtemngobligations. They includestatement of net
positionand astatement of activitiethat are designed to provide consolidated financial information
about tle governmental activities of the County presented on the accrual basis of accounting.

0 Thestatement of ngiositionpr ovi des i nf ormati on about the
its assets and liabilities, using an economic resources measurement focus. The difference
between the assets and liabilities, thepwetition is a measure of the financial health of the
Couwnty.

0 Thestatement of activitiggresents informatioa h owi ng how tpbsgionCount y®o
changediuring the 203 fiscal year. All changes in npbsitionare reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless bfrtimg of related cash

flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will onl
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes earned, and earned but
unused vacation leave). This statemie® I nt ended t o summari ze a
analysis of cost of various governmental services. An increase or decreasgositiggtis an
indication of whether the Countyds financi

Both of these financiaktatements present the functions of the County that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fakstearges (businesgpe

activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public health and
safely, physical environment, transportation, economic environment, human services, culture and
recreation, and court relatediaities. The businestype activities of the County include three

separate water and sewer systems.

Over a period of time, changes in @ u n heypbsionare an indication of improving or
deteriorating financial condition. This information shob&levaluated in conjunction with other
nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the

Countybs capital assets including infrastruct
5



Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are afehe components of the basic financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregate
for specific activities or objectives. The County uses fund accounting to ensuderaadstrate

compliance with financeelated legal requirements and prudent fiscal management. Certain funds are
established by law while others are created by legal agreements, such aesvsrrahts Fund

financial statements provide more detailed infart i on about the Countyods
focusing on its most significant or major funds rather than fund types. This is in contrast to the entity
wide perspective contained inthe government d e st at ement s. All of tt
classfied in the boad category ofovernmental funds, proprietary fun@sdfiduciary (agency)

fundsas discussed below.

0 Governmental funds these funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activitiesthe governmenwide financial statements. However, the
governmental funds utilize a spendable financial resources measurement focus rather than the
economic resources measurement focus found in the govermngentinancial statements.

This financidresources measurement focus allows the governmental fund statements to
provide information on nedaerm inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Consequently, the
governmental fund statements provide a detailed-g¢&ort view that may be used to evaluate

t he Co u ndrnyfinancing eequirements. This shtatm view is useful when compared

to the longterm view presented as governmental activities in tivermeniwide financial
statements. To facilitate this comparison, both the governmental balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation of governmental funds to goveemtal activities.

O«

Proprietary fund$ the County maintains one type of proprietary funds which is the enterprise
funds. These funds are used to report busitygssactivities in the governmentide financial
statements. The County uses gniise funds to account for the fiscal activities relating to
water and sewer systems in Gulf County. The proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the governmewnide financial statements, only in more detail.

Fiduciary (ageay) fundsi fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or
fiduciary capacity for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the governmemtide statements because the resources are not availaipport

the Countyds programs. I n its fiduciary ¢
the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes.

O«



Infrastructure Assets

Generally a government 0s | iaroadsebsidgesgrafiic signalgdnd a s s
underground pipes not associated with a utility, etc.) are not reported nor depreciated in governmental
fund financial statements. GASB Statement Nbre&juires these assets be valued and reported in the
governmental column of the governmavitle statements. Additionally, the government must elect to
either (a) depreciate these assets over #stimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset
management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to near perpetuity. If the government
elects the asset management (the modified approach), which periodically (at least every third year), by
category, measures and demonstrates its maintepalumlly established levels of service standards,

the government may record its costs of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The County has elected t

depreciate its infrastructure assets.

Governmentwide Financial Analysis

Statement of NetPosition

Netpositionma y

serve

over

t i

me

as a

usef ul

i ndi

assets exceeded liabilities (governmental and bustgpssactivities) by approximatelyl® million at
the close of the fiscal year end8dptember 3®013 and $1 million at September 30, 2Q.

Net Position
Governmental Activities Businesstype Activities Total
September 30, 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current assets $18,387,548 $21,694,957 $ 26,064 $ 26,039 $18,413,612 $21,720,996
Capital assets, net 45,721,906  48,548,96 320,379 341,415 46,042,285 48,890,321
Deferred charges &
Other restricted assets _ 2,640,210 1,897,763 o] o] 2,640,210 1,897,763

Total assets 66,749,664 72,141,626 346,443 367,454 67,096,107 72,509,080
Current liabilities 813,803 2,802,012 o} o} 813,803 2,802,012
Long-term liabilities 16,696,003 18,687,123 3 o) 16,696,003 18,687,123

Total liabilities 17,509,806 21,489,135 d d 17,509,806 21,489,135
Deferred inflows 385,624 o) d d 385,624 o)
Netinvestment in

capital assets 33,171,756 33,786,647 320,379 341,415 33492135 34,128,062
Netposition- Restricted 10,048,296 10,097,411 o) o) 10,048,296 10,097,411
Net position- Unrestricted 5,634,182 6,768,433 26,064 26,039 5,660,246 6,794,472

Total netposition $48,854,234 $50,652,491 $ 346,443 $ 367,454 $49,200,677 $51,019,945




Statement ofActivities

The following schedule summarizes revenues and expenses for yearSeptisdber 30, 2018nd

2012:

Changes in NetPosition

Governmental Activities Businesstype Activities Total
Year Ended September 30, 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Program Revenues

Charges for services $ 2,314,369 $ 3,012,856 $ o} $ o} $ 2,314,369 $ 3,012,856
Operating grants

and contributions 2,180,585 3,256,222 5] 5] 2,180,585 3,256,222
Capital grants

and contributions 95,543 2,280,826 o) o) 95,543 2,280,826

General Revenues

Property taxes 9,182,957 10,694,808 6] 6] 9,182,957 10,694,808
Sales taxes 2,615,661 3,675,758 6] 6] 2,615,661 3,675,758
State shared revenue 2,614,789 1,530,972 o) o) 2,614,789 1,530,972
Investment earnings 46,630 105,884 25 54 46,655 105,938
Other 144,519 1,168,573 o) o) 144,519 1,168,573
Total revenues 19,195,053 25,725,899 25 54 19,195,078 25,725,953
Expenses
General government 5,199,459 4,943,790 0 0 5,199,459 4,943,790
Public safety 7,093,154 7,200,188 6] 6] 7,093,154 7,200,188
Physical environment 1,409,584 1,887,786 0 0 1,409,584 1,887,786
Transportation 1,738,269 3,496,015 6] 6] 1,738,269 3,496,015
Economic environment 1,616349 1,830,957 0 0 1,616,349 1,830,957
Human services 1,672,939 1,712,515 o) o) 1,672,939 1,712,515
Culture and recreation 981,616 405,171 o) o) 981,616 405,171
Court related 613,498 593,623 6] 6] 613,498 593,623
Interestand

othercharges 668,442 747,162 6] 6] 668,442 747,162
Utilities o) o) 21,036 21,036 21,036 21,036
Total expenditures 20,993,310 22,817,207 21,036 21,036 21,014,346 22,838,243

Change in netposition $(1,798257 $ 2908692 $ (21010 $ (20982 $(1,819268 $ 2,887,710



Financial Analysis of Individual Funds

This section provides an analysis of the balances and transactions of individual funds. The County
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliand@naitberelated legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The primary pur gavenenentaffundsioeprowde unforingti@n®n nederm

inflows, outflow, and balances spendable resourcesSuch information is useful in assessing the
Couny 6s financi ng r e qunassignaedend bakncenaylserve psausetulimeasurea r ,
of a governmentds net resources, available fo

As of September 30, 201Gulf County governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$18,647,800a decreasef $1,227,109vhen compared to prior year combined fund balances. The
governmental funds had n@pendable fund balances &&921 The restricted fund balance sva
$10,048,296nd consists of monies whose expenditure is externally constrained by grantors, creditors,
binding law or enabling legislation. Of the remain§&3541,583n fund balance, 464,763is

classified as committed 3$19,874s recorded as assigd and $,656,946s recorded as unassigned.

o] General Fund Unrestricted/Undesignated Fund BalanceAs depicted in the following
graph, thainassigned und bal ance of the Boardds gener
the County)decreasedlightly over the past year.

)f Unassigned General Fund Balances
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0 Governmental Activities Expenses by Functions
The foll owing graph depicts the Countyds t
for the fiscal year endin§eptember 30, 2013

Culture and Physical Environment
Recreation 6.7%
4.6%
Public Safety
33.8%
General Governme
24.9%
Transportation

0,
Interest and Othe 8.3%

Charges Economic
3.2% Court Related 4yman Services Environment

2.9% 7.9% 7.7%

Major Funds

Governmental Funds
The general, fines and forfeitures, construction and acquisition, beach renourishment, and debt servic
public improvement funds are reported as major governmental funds.

0 Thegeneral fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and
other receipts that are not required either legally or by generally accepted accounting principles
to be accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the gé&nsila

General operating funds of the Clerk of the Circuit Court, Property Appraiser, Sheriff, Tax
Coll ector, and Supervisor of Elections rep
that are held and accounted for individually, but presented with the balance of the Board of
County Commi ssionersd operating funds.

0OThe State Housing Initiative Partnership (
produce and peerve affordable homeownership.

0 Public Improvement Fund accounts for resources used to account for the accumulation of

resources for and the payment of gas tax refunding and improvement revenue bonds.
10



Proprietary Funds

The County owns the two remaig water systems, Williamsburg/Methodist Hill and Oak Grove.

The City of Wewahitchka operates the Williamsburg/Methodist Hill Water System. Although there is
not an active intelocal agreement this water system continues to be operated by the City of
Wewabhitchka under the terms of the 1993 uhberl agreement which terminated in 1994. The City

of Port St. Joe operates the Oak Grove Water System. Neither one of these water systems brings an)
revenue to the County. The only expense to the Counsjtfaar of these two water systems is
depreciation. There was a budgeted Hitead transfer to the general fund from the Oak Grove Water
System to pay for sidewalks in the Oak Grove argha transfer from Highland View Water System

to general fund to oke out the fund.

Budget Variances in Major Funds

The following budget variances occurred in the major funds during the year $eptenber 30,
2013

™

0 Intergovernmental revenue (federal, state, and other local government sources in the form
of grants, shared revenues, and payments in lieu of taxeé&34s1$0ess than budgeted in

the general fund. Several grants were neither completed nor started id12H028fiscal

year as originally anticipated therefore actual revenues are &sbuldgeted.

0 General fund charges for services include County officer fees, ambulance fees, and
tipping fees. The positive variance &38,773is partly because of the commission earned
from tax certificates sold for 2@ taxes, and increadembulance revenue.

O«

General fund miscellaneous revenue shows a positive varian8&,868 This positive
variance is from a combination of rent, sales of fixed assets and surplus material scrap, and
contributions not originally anticipated.

0 All functionally categorized expenditures are less than budgeted

Other variances disclosed on the major fund budget and actual statements and not noted herein are
within expected ranges.

It should be noted that budget expenditure variasbhes/n on the individual major funds are
favorable in total.

11



Capital Assets and LongTerm Debt

0 Governmental Funds OutstandingDebt. The following graph depicts future principahd
interest payments required to be paid by therBofrom governmental fund resources on
outstanding debt as &eptember 30, 2013Not shown on this grapére existingscheduled
debt repayments for years Zthrough 2032.

y Required Principal and Interest Payments

$1,020,000.00
$1,010,000.00
$1,000,000.00
$990,000.00
$980,000.00
$970,000.00
$960,000.00

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Governmental Activities Revenues by SourceThe followinggrapld e pi ct s t he Count

governmental activities revenue by source for the fiscal year.

Capital Grants and
Contributions

Charges for Services Property Tax
12.1% 47.8%

Investment Earnin
0.2%

State Share
Revenues
13.6%

Operating Grants

g & Miscellaneous and
Contributions Transfers

11.4% 08%
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Significant Economic Factors
Assessed/alue of Property and Millage Rates

Certified Assessed/alue by Tax Year

y Final Certified Assessed Value

$3,000,000,000

$2,000,000,000

$1,000,000,000

$0
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

V Millage Rates
6.5608

2010 2011 2012 2013

Requests forinformation

This report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general overview
of the Countyds finances and to demonstrate <c
Questions concerning any of the informatpmovided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to:

Rebecca L. Norris, Clerk of Circuit Court of Gulf County

1000 Cecil G. Costin, Sr. Blvd., Room 148
Port St. Joe, Florida 32456

13
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash anaash equivalents
Receivables (net):
Accounts
Notes receivable
Prepaid expense
Due from othegovernments
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assetsNondepreciable
Depreciable (net)
Unamortized bond issue costs
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to other governments
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Due in less than one year
Compensated absences
Installment contracts and notes payable
Bonds payable
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences
Installment contracts and notes payable
Bonds payable
Other postemployment benefits
Landfill closure liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Unearned exchange transactions
Property taxes
Total Deferred Inflows
NET POSITION
Netinvestment in capital assets
Restricted for Debt service
Tourist Development
Conservation
Transportation
Public Safety
Public Health
Court Functions
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Primary Government
Governmental Businesstype
Activities Activities Total

$16,949,741 $ 26,64 $16,975,805

534,009 0 534,009
55,866 0 55,866
55,239 0 55,239

792,693 0 792,693

18,387,548 26,064 18,413,612
2,360,444 0 2,360,444
3,779,786 737 3,780,523

41,942,120 319,642 42,261,762

279,766 0 279,766

48,362,116 320,379 _48,682,495
66,749,664 346,443 _67,096.107

800,975 0 800,975
12,828 0 12,828
813,803 0 813,803
315,798 0 315,798
29,645 0 29,645
435,000 0 435,000
947,392 0 947,392
35,505 0 35,505
12,050,000 0 12,050,000
353,321 0 353,321
2,529,342 0 2,529,342
16,696,003 0 16,696,003
17,509,806 0 17,509,806
315,005 0 315,005
70,619 ) 70,619
385,624 0 385,624
33,171,756 320,379 33,492,135
2,222,403 0 2,222,403
1,598,694 0 1,598,694
2,499,790 0 2,499,790
388,953 0 388,953
1,676,045 0 1,676,045
853,805 0 853,805
443,811 0 443,811
364,795 o) 364,795
5,634,182 26,064 _ 5,660,246

$48,854,234 $ 346,443 $ 49,200,677

See accompanying notes to thasic financial statements



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in NetPosition

Program Revenues Primary Government
Charges  Operating Capital Business
for Grantsand  Grants and Governmental Type

Functions/Programs _Expenses __Services Contributions Contributions _Activities Activities Total
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government $ 5,199,459 $ 506,460 $ 31,193 $ 8 $(4,661,806 $ 8 $ (4,661,806)
Public safety 7,093,154 1,409,639 443,025 58,138 (5,182,352 o) (5,182,352)
Physical environment 1,409,584 119,003 559,323 11,100 (720,158 o) (720,158)
Transportation 1,738,269 o) 111,149 26,305 (1,600,815% o) (1,600,815)
Economic environment 1,616,349 41,450 432,445 0 (1,142,453 0 (1,142,454)
Human services 1,672,939 o) 18,500 o] (1,654,439 o] (1,654,439)
Culture and recreation 981,66 28,392 51,215 o] (902,009 o] (902,009)
Court related 613,498 209,425 533,735 o] 129,662 o] 129,662
Interest &other charges 668,442 o) o) o] (668,442 o] (668,442
Total Governmental

Activities 20,993,310 _ 2,314,369 _ 2,180,585 95,543 (16,402,813 o) (16,402,813
BusinessType Activities
Water 21,036 o) o) o] o] (21,036) (21,036)

Total Primary
Government $21.014.346 $2,314.369 $2,180585 $ 95543 (16,402,813 (21,036) (16,423,849

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property tax 9,182,957 0 9,182,957
Sales tax 2,615,661 o) 2,615,661
State shared revenues 2,614,789 0 2,614,789
Investment earnings 46,630 25 46,665
Miscellaneous 144,519 o) 144,519
Total General Revenues 14,604,556 25 14,604,581
Changes in Nd®osition (1,798,257 (21,01) (1,819,268
NetPositioni Beginning of Year 50,652,491 367,454 51,019,945
Net Positioni End of Year $48,854,234 $ 346,443 $ 49,200,677

Seeaccompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET 1T GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

State
Housing Other Total
General Initiative Public Governmental Governmental
Fund Partnership Improvement Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,585,677 $ 767,151 $1,270,300 $ 6,326,613 $ 16,949,741
Due from other funds 122,718 o} o} 10,163 132,881
Due from other governments 367,829 o] 198,422 226,442 792,693
Accounts receivable (net) 269,291 o] o] 199,225 468,516
Prepaid expense 52,974 o] o] 2,265 55,239
Notes receivable o} 55,866 o} o} 55,866
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,647,372 o] 713,072 o) 2,360,444
Total Assets 11,045,861 823,017 _ 2,181,794 6,764,708 20,815,380
LIABILITIES , DEFERRED INFLOWS
AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Vouchers payable 686,343 o} 1,750 112,882 800,975
Due to other governments 12,828 o] o] 4 12,828
Due to other funds 59,823 82 o] 7,483 67,388
Total Liabilities 758,994 82 1,750 120,365 881,191
Deferred Inflows
Unearned exchanged transactions 286,640 701,337 o] 218,115 1,206,092
Property taxes 80,297 o] o] o] 80,297
Total Deferred Inflows 366,937 701,337 o) 218,15 1,286,389
Fund Balance
Nonspendable 55,656 o] o] 2,265 57,921
Restricted 1,776,752 121,598 2,180,044 5,969,902 10,048,296
Committed 54,642 o} o} 410,121 464,763
Assigned 3,375,934 o} o} 43,940 3,419,874
Unassigned 4,656,946 o] o] o] 4,656,946
Total fund balance 9,919,930 121,598 _ 2,180,044 6,426,228 18,647,800
Total Liabilities Deferred Inflows
& Fund Balance $ 11,045,861 $ 823,017 $2,181,794 $ 6,764,708
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of ngtositionare different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activai@snot
financialresources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 45,721,906
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (16,696,003
Other longterm assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. 1,180,531
Net position of governmental activities $ 48,854,234

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Fines and forfeitures

Charges for services
Investment earnings and other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economicenvironment
Human services
Culture and recreation
Court related

Debt service

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in Fund Balance

Fund balance beginning

Fund balance- ending

State
Housing Other Total
General Initiative Public Governmental Governmental
Fund Partnership Improvement Funds Funds
$ 8,070,801 $ 0 $ 319,571 $ 3,403,108 $ 11,793,480
242,365 o] o] o] 242,365
2,755,819 368,724 909,215 832,611 4,866,369
26,323 o] o] o] 26,323
1,724,398 o] o] 118,249 1,842,647
143,245 23,822 1,670 19,510 188,247
12,962,951 392,546 _ 1,230,456 4,373,478 18,959,431
4,757,582 o] o] 4 4,757,582
5,720,230 o] o] 395,191 6,115,421
608,584 o] o] 420,731 1,029,315
835,949 o] o] 82,175 918,124
269,324 368,846 o] 920,591 1,558,761
790,472 o] o] 710,104 1,500,576
227,669 o] o] 4 227,669
574,678 o] o] 23,417 598,095
15,177 o] 989,471 1,875,903 2,880,551
444,090 o] o] 156,356 600,446
14,243,755 368,846 989,471 4,584,468 20,186,540
(1,280,804 23,700 240,985 (210,990) (1,227,109)
44,055 o] o] 20,000 64,055
(20,0009 o) o) (44,055 (64,055
24,055 o] o] (24,055 o)
(1,256,749 23,700 240,985 (235,045) (1,227,109)
11,176,679 97,898 _ 1,939,059 6,661,273 19,874,909

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:
Net change in fund balanciégotal governmental fundpage ¥) $(1,227,109)
Capital outlay, reported as expemads in governmental funds, are shown as

capital assets in the statement of activities net of accumulated depreciation. (2,835,753

Repayment of longerm debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds
but asa reduction of longerm liabilities in the statement of nabsition 2,212,109

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. (220,989

Amortization of bond issuance costs is recognized over the life of the bond on
the statement of n@bsition but expenses in the governmental funds. (68,130)

The fair market value of donated assetsoissidered revenue in the statement
of activities but do not provide current financial resources, therefore is not

reported as revenue in the funds. 8,753

Certain revenues not considered available are not recognized in the

governmental fads but are included in the statement of activities. 332,862
Change in netposition of governmental activities(page B) $(1,798,257

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES 7 BUDGET AND ACTUAL i GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 8,260,534 $ 8,254,895 $ 8,070,801 $ (184,094
Licenses and permits 128,850 128,850 242,365 113,515
Intergovernmental 3,360,346 3,380,979 2,755,819 (634,160
Fines and forfeitures 3,600 24,901 26,323 1,422
Charges for services 1,410,350 1,490,625 1,724,398 233,773
Miscellaneous revenues 40734 55,387 143,245 87,858
Total revenues 13,204,414 13,344,637 12,962,951 (381,686)
Expenditures:
Current
General government 5,049,079 5,071,374 4,757,582 313,792
Public safety 5,749,966 5,840,652 5,720,230 120,422
Physical environment 696,195 710,699 608,584 102,115
Transportation 904,415 1,015,715 835,949 179,766
Economic environment 223,900 272,737 269,324 3,413
Human services 896,486 896,486 790,472 106,014
Culture and recreation 296,568 296,568 227,669 68,899
Cout related 603,771 640,997 574,678 66,319
Debt service 4,870 15,177 15,177 0
Capital outlay 923,436 _ 1,080,978 444,090 636,888
Total expenditures 15,348,686 15,841,383 14,243,755 1,597,628
Excess (deftiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,144,272 (2,496,74% (1,280,804 _ 1,215,942
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 37,472 44,055 44,055 o]
Transfers out o) (20,000 (20,000 o}
Total other financing
Sources (uses) 37,472 24,055 24,055 o)
Net change in fund balance (2,106,800 (2,472,69) (1,256,749 1,215,942
Fund balance- beginning 11,176,679 11,176,679 11,176,679 o)

Fund balance- ending

$9,069,879 ¢ 8,703,988 $ 9,919,930 $ 1,215,942

See accompanyingptes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES 7 BUDGET AND ACTUAL 1 STATE HOUSING INITIATIVE PAR TNERSHIP
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $ 368,724 $ 18,724
Investment earnings arudher 0 0 23,822 23,822

Total revenues 350,000 350,000 392,546 42,546
Expenditures:
Current

Economic Environment 446,244 446,244 368,846 77,398

Total expenditures 446,244 446,244 368,846 77,398
Excess (deficit) of revenues

over (under) expenditures (96,249 (96,249 23,700 119,944
Fund balances- beginning 97,898 97,898 97,898 o}
Fund balances- ending $ 1654 $ 1,654 121,598 119,944

See accompanying notes to the basic finarstétements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES 7 BUDGET AND ACTUAL 1 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 924,938 $ 924938 $ 909,215 $ (15,723
Taxes 353,867 353,867 319,571 (34,296)
Investment earnings 1,500 1,500 1,670 170

Total revenues 1,280,305 _ 1,280,305 1,230,456 (49,849
Expenditures:
Current

Debt Service 989,809 989,809 989,471 338

Total expenditures 989,809 989,809 989,471 338
Excess (deficit) ofrevenues

over (under) expenditures 290,496 290,496 240,985 0
Fund balances- beginning 1,939,059 _ 1,939,059 1,939,059 o}

Fund balances- ending $ 2,229,555 $2,229555 $2,180,044 $ (49,511)

See accompanying notesthe basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Businesstype Activities/Enterprise Funds

Williamsburg
and Total
Oak Methodist Businesstype
Grove Hill Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 26,064 $ 0o $ 26,064
Total current assets 26,064 0 26,064

Noncurrent assets

Capital assets
Land 737 o} 737
Buildings and utility system 269,453 571,925 841,378
Less allowance for

depreciation (235,762) (285,974 (521,736
Total noncurrent assets 34,428 285,951 320,379
Total assets 60,492 285,951 346,443
Liabilities

Total liabilities d d d
Net position

Net investment in

capital assets 34,428 285,951 320,379
Unrestricted 26,064 d 26,064
Total net position $ 60492 $ 285951 $ 346,443

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Businesstype Activities/Enterprise Funds

Williamsburg
and Total
Oak Methodist Businesstype
Grove Hill Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 0o $ 0o $ 0
Operating expenses
Depreciation 6,736 14,300 21,036
Total operating expenses 6,736 14,300 21,036
Operating income (loss) (6,736) (14,300) (21,039
Nonoperating revenues
(expenses)
Interest income 25 o} 25
Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses) 25 o 25
Change in netposition (6,710 (14,300) (21,0123
Net position - beginning 67,203 300,251 367,454
Net position - ending $ 60492 $ 285951 $ 346,443

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Businesstype Activities/Enterprise Funds

Williamsburg
and Total
Oak Methodist Businesstype
Grove Hill Funds
Investing activities
Interest earned $ 25 $ o $ 25
Net increase in cash
and cash equivalents 25 o} 25
Cash and cash equivalents
T beginning 26,039 o) 26,039
Cash and cash equivalents
i ending $ 26,064 3 0 $ 26,064

(continued)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (continued)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Businesstype Activities/Enterprise Funds

Williamsburg
and Total
Oak Methodist Businesstype
Grove Hill Funds

Reconciliation of operating
income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in)
operating activities
Operating income (loss) $  (6,736) $ (14,300) $ (21,039

Adjustmentdo reconcile
Operating income (loss)
To net cash provided
By (used in) operating
Depreciation 6,736 14,300 21,036

Total adjustments 6,736 14,300 21,036

Net cash provided by
(used in) operating
activities $ 0 $ 0 $ o)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Agency
Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 429,649
Accounts receivable (net) 4,442
Due from other funds 67,957
Total Assets 502,048
Liabilities
Accounts payable 5,012
Due to individuals 317,816
Due to other funds 133,450
Due to other governments 45,770
Total Liabilities $ 502,048

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. ReportingEntity

Gulf County Florida (County) located in Northwest Florida, is a political subdivision of the
State of Florida and provides services to approximately 16,000 residents in many areas
including general government, public safety, physical environment, transportation, economic
environment, human services, and culture and recreation. The County is governed by a five
member elected Board of County Commissioners (Board), which deriaghisrity from

Florida Statutes and regulations. In addition to the members of the Board, there are five
elected constitutional officers: Clerk of the Circuit Court, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property
Appraiser and Supervisor of Elections.

The electedffices of the Clerk of th€ircuit Court, Sheriff, Tax Collector, Property

Appraiser, and Supervisor of Elections are operated as separate County agencies in accordanc
with applicable provisions of Florida Statutes. These constitutional officerateqmar a
budgetsystem whereby Counigppropriated funds are received from the Board and

unexpended funds are returned to the Board. The Clerk of the Circuit Court operates as a fee
officer by retaining various fees collected by this office and lgiithre Board for certain

services provided. Separate accounting records and budgets are maintained by each individua
office.

As required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nbel4,
Reporting Entitythe financial reportingntity consists of the primary government (composed

of the Board of County Commi ssioners and C
component units, for which the primary government is considered to be financially
accountable. Also included are ettentities whose exclusion would cause the reporting
entityés financial statements to be misl ea
individually evaluated using specific criteria outlined in GASB Statement No. 14 to determine
whether he entity is: a) part of the primary government; b) a component unit which should be
included in the reporting entity (blended or discretely presented); or c) an organization which
should be excluded from the reporting endéititirely. The principal créria for classifying a

potential component unit include the legal separateness of the organization, the financial
accountability of the primary government for the potential component unit resulting from
either the primary gover wméht o alhiel ptoy eino
fiscal dependency on the primary government. The dependent special districts, Howard Creek
Fire Control, Overstreet Fire Control, St. Joe Fire Control, Tupelo Fire Control, and Highland
View Water and Sewer iBtrict are considered component units, and are blended in the

financial statements of the County as part of the enterprise funds and the special revenue funds
There are no other entities for which there were positive responses to specific critkf@ use
establishing oversight responsibility that
statements.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The County was established by the constitution of the State of Florida, Article VIII, Section 1
(e). Dependent special districts were created as follows: Highland View Water and Sewer
District, Laws of Florida Chapter 62212; Howard Creek Fire Distridtaws of Florida

Chapter 79467; Overstreet Fire District, Laws of Florida Chaptei518; St. Joe Fire District,
Laws of Florida Chapter 424541; and Tupelo Fire District, Laws of Florida Chapte696.

All fire Districts were conformed and-estaltished by County Ordinance #199@.
The accounting policies of the County conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the significant

accounting policies.

B. Governmenwide andFund Financial Statements

The governmentide financial statements (i.e., the statement opositionand the statement

of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. For th@sh part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, waiemormally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from busipesactivities, which rely

to a signifcant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units, if any, for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demamgées the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: a) charges to
customer®r applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment; and, b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particuddofuor

segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governnfantis, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though tlegter are excluded from the governmavitle financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

28



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCI AL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The County reportdireemajor governmental funds:

w

0 GeneraFundi The general fund is the Countyods
account for all resources traditionally associated with governmental activities except
those required to be accounted for in other funds.

O«

State Housing Initiative PartnershipThis fund is used to account for activity relating
to the State ldusing Initiative Partnership revenues and expenses.

0 Public Improvement This fund is used to account fibre accumulation of resources
for and the paymemf gas tax refunding and improvement revenue bonds.

The County reports each of the enterprise funds as major funds. Each fund is used to account
for activity of the utility for area served.

The County reports one type of fiduciary fund, agency fumtigeh are used to account for the
collection and disursement of funds by the County on behalf of other governments and
individuals.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The governmentide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurema focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flo

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are considered tc
be available when they are collectible within the current pen@don enough thereafter to

pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded whdalality is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
are recorded only when payment is due.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenseadraperating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a prop
Countyds enterpri se antihedhbyilotal citiss. Ehe @ounty peeeivest e
the amounts billed to customers for the required debt service and bond payments. The terms o

these interlocal agreements are described in note 18.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Enterprise Activities

For enterprise activities, ti@unty applies all applicable GASB pronouncements.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

General governmental revenue and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are
controlled by a budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements

which govern the Countybés operations. Bud
classification detail; however, expenditures cannot legally exceed total appropriations at the
individual fund | evel. Al l budget changes

approved by the Board.

The budgetary information presented tloe general fund and any major governmental funds is
prepared on the modified accrual basis. Encumbrances are not recorded. Unexpended items :
yearend must be reappropriated in the subsequent year.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivatsrtonsist of those deposits made locally in commercial banks and
investments purchased through the Florida Local Government Investment Trust. All deposits
in commercial banks are with qualified public depositories authorized by Chapter 280, Florida
Statd e s . The deposits are insured through F
collateral pool. The Florida Local Government Investment Trust deposits are maintained in
investment pools which invest primarily in highly liquid commercial papgnirchase
agreements, bankersdé acceptance nolhes and
County follows GASB Statement No. 34¢counting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Paalsgporting on investmentswmed. Generally,

this statement requires various investments be reported at fair value, including debt securities
and operended mutual funds.

G. Accounts Receivable

The Countybés and its c¢ o mahemhamambulance sewviceac c o u
accounts receivable as described in note 12, are deemed to be entirely collectible. Therefore,
an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has not been recorded.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

H. Due from (to) Other Funds

J.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding

at the end of the fiscal yfeamdare rAderredi
outstanding between the governmental activities and busiyigssctivities are reported in the
governmenwwi de financi al statements as fAdAinterna
Inventories

Inventory items of materials andplies, which are not significant in amount, are considered
expenditures when purchased in the governmental funds. The balance of physical inventory or
hand at fiscal yeaend has not been recorded because the amount is not considered material.

Capitd Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
right of ways, stormwater system, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or busines$gpe activities columni the governmentvide financial statements.
Machinery and equipment with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year are recorded as capital assets. Buildings, roads, bridges, and
sidewalks areapitalized when their initial costs exceed $25,000 and possess estimated useful
lives of more than one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost when purchased or
constructed or estimated historical cost if actual cost is unknown. Dongital aasets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenanc:
and repairs that does not add to the value of an asset or materially extend its useful life is
expenses as incurred.

Property, plant andgglipment are depreciated using the straligiet method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are generally as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Improvemens 50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
Infrastructure 1525 years

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
For assets constructed with governmental fund resources, interest during the construction
period is not capitalized.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

K. Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues reported in the governavade financial statements represent unearned
revenus. The deferred revenues will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year they are
earned in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Deferred revenues reported in
governmental fund financial statements represent unearned revenues or reveciuesey
measurable but not available, and in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting,
are reported as deferred revenues.

L. Compensated Absences

The County maintains a policy that permits employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacdion and sick pay benefits that will be paid to employees upon separation from County
service if certain criteria are met. These benefits, plus their related tax and retirement costs are
classified as compensated absences. Employees may be paidsted uacation hours

accrued up to a maximum amount. Payment of unused sick leave, upon termination, is also
provided for up to varying amounts.

Both the current and lorgrm portion of compensated absences are accrued and reported in
the governmentvide financial statements. No expenditure is reported in the goverifmmeht

level statements for these amounts until payment is made. Compensated absences liability is
based on current rates of pay. This is accounted for pursuaAiSB GtatementNo. 16,
Accounting for Compensated Absences.

M. Property Taxes

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properéind the collection of all county, municipal

and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the ProgaisApand

Tax Collector. The laws of the State regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a
consistent property valuation method statewide. Florida Statutes permit counties to levy
property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills for general dipeisa The 202 tax yeamillage rate
assessed by the County weag419mils.

The tax levy of the County is established by the Board prior to October 1, of each year and the
Property Appraiser incorporates the County millage rates into the totaligxvhich
includes the various municipalities, the county school board, and other taxing authorities.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

All property is assessed according to its fair market value January 1, of each year. Each
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the FIDegartment of Revenue
for review to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate rements of Florida Statutes.

All taxes become payable on November 1, of each year, or as soon thereafter as the assessme
roll is certified and delivered to the Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on

April 1 following the year in whichhey are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early

payment at the rate of 4% in the month of NovemB#rjn the month of December, 2% in the
month of January and 1% in the month of February. Taxes paid in March are without discount.

On or prior toJunel, following the tax year, tax certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on
real property. After sale, tax certificates bear interest of 18% per year or at any lower rate bid
by the buyer. Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed té#ficages may be made by

the certificate holder after a period of two years. Unsold tax certificates are held by the
County.

N. Implementation of New GASB Pronouncements

The County implemented GASB Statement No.F4hd Balance Reporting and

Governmetal Fund Type Definitionduring the fiscal year end&kptember 30, 2Q1 This

GASB statement clarifies governmental fund balance classifications and fund type definitions.
The basis for the division of fund balances is the level of constraint Igrtimuse of the
resources reported in the governmental funds. GASB Statement No. 54 became effective for
financial statement periods beginning after June 15, 2010.

O. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.Seggly accepted accounting
principle requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

P. Use of Restricted Assets

It is generally he practice of the County to utilize restricted pasitionbefore unrestricted net
assets when possible.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

Q. Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and service
which are chargeable to an appropriation and for which a part of the appropriation is reserved.
Encumbrances do not represent expenditures olifie®i Encumbrances outstanding at year

end lapse andre reappropriated in the subsequent year.

R. LongTerm Obligations

In the governmenivide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the fund financial
statement, longerm debt and other hgrterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, businggse activities, or proprietary fund statement of
netposition Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over thife of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

S. Subsequent Events

The County evaluated subsequent events thrdughk 9, 2014the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued. The County did not have any subsequent events
requiring disclosure or recording in these financial statements.

NOTE 2- RECONCILIATION OF GOVERN MENT -WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet and the
governmenwide statement of ngtosition

The governmental funds balance sheet includes reconciliation befiwetbalancé total
governmental fundandnetpositionof governmental activitiegs reported in the government
wide statement of ngiosition One element of that reconciliation expla s , -tefimM o n g
liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds. 0 T h €1669&003iffeltesce ard as followss $
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NOTE 2- RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT -WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Bonds payable $12,48,000
Installment contracts and notes payable 65,150
OtherPostemployment benefits 353,321
Landfill closure liabilities 2,529,342
Compensated absences 1,263,190

Net adjustment to redudend balance
total governmental fundse arrive at

netpositionof governmental activities $16,696,003
Anot her el ement of that reconciliation sta
not financial resources dtherefore arestr e port ed i n the funds. 0

$45,721,906lifference are as follows:

Cost of capital assets $76,398,875
Less: accumulated depreciation (30,676,969

Net adjustment toncreasdund balancé
total governmental funds arrive at
net positionof governmental activities $45,721,906

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds statements of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the goverwiderdtatement of activities:

The governmental fundsas¢ment of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includesa reconciliatiorbetweemet changes in fund balanciesotal governmental fundsnd
changes in nghositionof governmental activitieas reported in the governmeside

statementofat i vi ti es. One el ement of that recor
report capitabutlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciaé X pens e .
details of this (£,827,000 difference are as follows:
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NOTE 2- RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT -WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Capital outlay $ 600,446
Disposal of capital assets (806,689
Assets received by donation 8,753
Depreciation expense (2,629,510

Net adjustment to decreaset change
in fund balance$ total governmental
fundsto arrive atchange in nepositionof

governmental activities $(2,827,000
Anot her el ement of that reconciliation sta
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not esported
expenditures in governmental fundso and Ar
provide current financi al resources are no
this (£220,989 difference are as follows:

Increasen compensated absences $ (90,419

Other Postemployment benefits (88,291)

Landfill closure (42,280

Net adjustment tincreasenet change

in fund balance$ total governmental

fundsto arrive atchange in nepositionof

governmental activities $ (220,989

NOTE 3-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits Policies

The Countybds cash and cash e qdepositg &ndsheérts 1 nc
term highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments Policies

Florida Statutes, Section 218.415, authorizes the County to invest surplus funds in the
following:
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The Local government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (State Board of Administration) or any
intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal &emper
Act as provided s.163.01.

Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit
guality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency.

Interesti bearing time deposits or savings accounts in-statified qualified public
depositories as defined in s. 280.02.

Direct obligations of the United States Treasury.
Federal agencies and instrumentalities.

Securities of, or other interesn, any opefend or closegnd managemeitype investment
company or investment trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15
U.S.C.ss. 804 et. seq., as amended from time to time, provided that the portfolio of such
investment companor investment trust is limited to obligations of the United States
Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof and to repurchase agreements full
collateralized by such United States Government obligations, and provided that such
investment company or investment trust takes delivery of such collateral either directly or
through an authorized custodian.

In addition, the County is authorized by law or by county ordinance to invest funds in the
following securities:

Commercial Paper of U.S.ofporations having a rating of at least two of the following three
ratings: A1,Rl,andF1, as rated by Standard & Poor s,
rating services.

Bankersd Acceptances t hat aReserve Bankg antd haee af or
Letter of Credit rating of A or better.

Obligations, rated A+ or better, of the State of Florida and its various local governments,
including Gulf County.

Overnight Repos (Repurchase Agreement) and Term Repos with matofigss than 30
days.

Corporate Securities rated AA/ Aa by Standa
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NOTE 3-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Quialified Purchaser Funds (3(c)7)funds) securities of an-epdmimanagement type

investment company or investment fund advised by a Registered Advisor under rule 3(c)(7) of
the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, provided that the funds investnusiings

state that the fund will seek to maintain a $1 per shangas@ionvalue.

Auction Rate Securities rate AAA/aaa.

Florida Statutes provide that funds awaiting clearing may be invested. Pursuant to an
agreement with a local financialinst ut i on, cash on deposit, in
invested overnight in United States Treasury Obligations per the repurchase agreement.

The Florida Local Government Investment Trust Fund (FLGIT) is a professionally managed
fund available onl to public entities in Florida. The investment policy of FLGIT restricts
investments to direct obligations of or securities fully guaranteed by the United States;
obligations of certain federal agencies, including collateralized obligations; repurchase
agreements; and commercial paper.

As of September 30,2013 t he Countyds deposits consi ste

Weighted Average
Fair Value  Maturity (months)

Florida Local Government Investment Trust $622.070 Demand
Total $622.070

Custodial Credit Risk of Deposits

All cash resources of the County are placed in banks that are qualified public depositories, as
required by law (Florida Security for Public Deposits Act). Every qualified public deppsi

is required by this law to deposit with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to, or in
excessof, an amount to be determined by the State Treasurer. The State Treasurer is required
toensurethattheount yés f unds kzeddehroaghdutithe stalyear. drithea t e r
event of failure by a qualified public depository, losses in excess of federal depository
insurance and proceeds from the sale of the securities pledged by the defaulting depository are
assessed against the athealified public depositories of tlsametype as the depository in

default. When other qualified public depositories are assessed additional amounts, they are
assessed on a prata basis.
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NOTE 3-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 201&e County did not hold any investments that were considered to be an
interest rate risk.

Credit Risks

At September 30, 2018e County did not hold any investments that were considered to be a
credit risk.

Custodial Risk

For an investment, there is a risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the government will not be able to recovevahee of its investments or

coll ateralized securities that are in the
investments are excluded from the definition of custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk

At September 30, 2018e Countydid not hold any investments that were considered to be a
concentration of credit risk.

NOTE 4-INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Internal balances &eptember 30, 2018onsisted of the following:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General fund $122,718 $ 59,823
Special revenue funds 10,163 7,565
Agency funds 67,957 133,450
Total $200,838 $200,838

The general fund has amounts due to and from constitutional officers, which represent the
return of excess appropriations due at the end of the fiscal year, from either budget or officers
or fee officers.
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NOTE 4-INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued)

All remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (a) interfund goods
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (b) ti@msace recorded in
the accounting system, and (c) payments between funds are made.

NOTE 5-INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year endeelptember 30, 2018onsisted of the following:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
General fund $ 44,055 $ 20,000
Special revenue funds
Sheriff 20,000 o]
Fire control o] 44,055
Total $ 64,055 $ 64,055

Thetransfers were for budgeted operations.

NOTE 6- CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year endsebtember 30, 2018vas as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2012 Increases Decreases 2013

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,761,986 $ o $ 0 $ 3,761,986
Construction in progress 675,187 244,159 (901,546 17,800
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 4,437,173 244,159 (901,546 3,779,786
Capital assets beirdgpreciated:
Buildings and improvements 16,492,790 195,433 (693,931) 15,994,292
Machinery and equipment 17,191,614 365,040 (431,270) 17,125,384
Infrastructure 38,987,162 706,113 (193,862) 39,499,413
Total capital assets being depreciated 72,671,566 1,266,586 (1,319,063 72,619,089
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildingsand improvements (5,529,181) (329,278) 78,430 (5,780,029)
Machinery (12,190,692) (1,487,822 433,944 (12,244,579
Infrastructure (11,839,960) (812,410) 0 (12,652,370)
Total accumulated depreciation (28,559,833) _ (2,629,510 512,374 (30,676,969
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 44,111,733 _ (1,362,924 (806,689 41,942,120

Total Governmental activities, capital assets,

(net of accumulated depreciation) $ 48548906 $ (1,118,763 $ (1,708,235 $ 45,721,906
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NOTE 6- CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

General Government $ 205,180
Public safety 906,605
Physical environment 319,975
Transportation 835,772
Economic environment 45,695
Human services 162,434
Culture and recreation 138,446
Court related 15,403
Total depreciation expensé governmental activities $ 2629510

September 30, September 30,

2012 Increases Decreases 2013

BusinessType Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 737 $ o $ 0o 3 737
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 737 o) o) 737
Capital assets beirdgpreciated:

Buildings andutility systems 841,378 o) o} 841,378
Total capital assets being depreciated 841,378 o) o) 841,378
Less accumulated depreciation (500,709 (21,036) o} (521,736
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 340,678 (21,036) o} 319,642

Total businesst y pe acdapitali t i es 6
assets (net of accumulated depreciation) $ 341415 $  (21,036) $ o $ 320,379

Depreciation expense for the water fund for the year eBdptember 30, 2028as $21,036.
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NOTE 7-LONG - TERM DEBT

Long-term debt of the County &eptember 30, 2018& as follows:

Balance Balance Due
September 30, September 30,  Within
Bonds Payable 2012 Additions Deductions 2013 One Year

Board of County Commissioners

Gas Tax Revenue Bonds, Series

2006; proceeds used for capital

improvements, refunding of 1995

gas tax refunding and improvement

revenue bonds and Series 2001

gas tax revenue bonds (ndtéd). $ 12,905,000 $ 0 $ (420000 $12485000 $ 435000

Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series
2006; proceeds used for capital
improvements (note-B) 1,755,000 o) (1,755,000 o] o)

Total governmental activities

bonds payable $ 14,660,000 $ 0  $(2,175,000 $12,485,000 $ 435,000

Notes Payable
Board of County Commissioners

Note payable to bank in annual
payments of $8,326including
interest a#d.2%%, unsecured $ 7799 $ d $ (25,010 $ 52986 $ 26,073

Total governmental activities
notes payable $ 7799 $ 0 $ (25010 $ 52986 $ 26,073

Installment Contracts Sheriff

Installment purchase agreement for

One vehicle, payable in 48 monthly

Installments of $506 including

Interest at 6.00% $ 8,884 $ d $ (8889 $ o $ o)

Total installment contracts
Sheriff $ 8,884 $ d

\

(8,884 $ 0 $ 0
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NOTE 7-LONG - TERM DEBT (continued)

Balance Balance Due
September 30, September 30, Within
2012 Additions Deductions 2013 One Year
Installment Contracts Clerk of Court
Installment purchase agreement for
Two copiers, payable in 63 monthly
Installments of $366 including
Interest at 8.443% $ 15379 % d $ (3215 $ 12,164 $ 3,572
Total governmental activities
installments contracts $ 24263 $ d $ (12,099 $ 12,164 $ 3,572
Long-term landfill closure and
postclosure liability (note2) $2,487,062 $ 42,280 $ d $2,529,342 $ 0
Other postemployment benefits 265,030 88,291 o] 353,321 o]
Liability for compensated
absences 1,172,772 406,440 (316,023 1,263,190 315,798
Total governmental activities
bonds, notes, payable and
other long-term debt $18,687,123 $ 537,012 $ (2,528,132 $16,696,003 $ 780,443

Future debt service requirements on kbeign debt are summarized below:

Series 2006
Capital Improvement

Year Ending Refunding Bonds
September 30, Principal Interest
2014 $ 435,000 $ 547,444
2015 455000 529,644
2016 475,000 511,044
2017 490,000 489,294
2018 515,000 466,744
2019 -2023 2,905,000 1,997,034
2024-2028 3,640,000 1,231,188
2029-2032 3,570,000 320,686
Total $ 12,485,000 $ 6,093,08
Year Ending Notes Payable
September 30, Principal Interest
2014 $ 26,073 $ 2,252
2015 26,913 1,144
Total $ 52,986 $ 3,396
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NOTE 7-LONG - TERM DEBT (continued)

y

Bonds Payable and Pledged Revenues

(A)

(B)

4% $14,745,000 Gas Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2006
$12,485,00alance. These bonds were issued in September 2006, for the purpose of
() financing the cost of the acquisition, construction, paving enlargement or other
improvements of certain roads and transportation systems within the County; (ii) refund
all of the Countybés Outstanding Gas Tax
Series 1995 and all of the Countyds Out
(iif) paying the cost of the premium of a Surety Bond to fund the Reserve Account; and
(iv) paying certain costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2006
Bonds. The Series 2006 bonds, mature serially beginning October 1, 2007 and are
subject to redemption prior to maturity. The bonds are payable from and secured by a
lien upon and pledge of (i) the Local Option Gas Tax, (ii) the Constitutional Gas Ta

(iif) the County Gas Tax., and (iv) interest earnings on certain funds. Tlaénieg

principal and interest payments on this debt e8egpitember 30, 202M8as

$18,578,079 Annual principal and interest payments on the bond reqéé%dof

pledged revenues. Principal and interest payments paid for the curreahgear

pledged revenues for the year we884,544and #,290,416Gespectively.

A portion of the proceeds from series 2006 bonds have been placed in an irrevocable
escrow account and invested in U.S. Treasury obligations that, together with interest
earned thereon, will provide amounts sufficient for future payment of interest and
principal on the series 1995 Tax Bonds and the series 2001 Gas Tax Revenue Bonds.
These refunded bonds have not be-&erm i ncl
delt since the County has legally satisfied its obligation with respect thereto through
the consumption of the refunding transaction described therein.

3.625% to 5.0% $10,790,000 Athlorem Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2006
$3,455,00alance. These bondere issued in December 2006, to be used for (i)
beachfront renourishment and reconstruction in Cape San Blas (ii) fund a Debt Service
Reserve Fund and (iii) pay certain costs and expenses related to the issuance of the
bond. The Bonds mature seridtlgginning on August 1, 2007 and are not sulifect
redemption prior to their stated maturities. The principle and interest on the bonds are
payable from and secured by a limited pledge of the ad valorem taxing power of the
County within its Cape Sdlas Gulfside Municipal Taxing Unit and its Cape San

Blas Gulfside Interior Municipal Services Taxing Unit and shall not exceed 6 mills and
4 mills, respectively. The remaining principal and interest payments on thiswaebt
zeroas ofSeptembeB0, 2013
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NOTE 8- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement Plan
Plan Description

The County and the elected officials participate in the Florida Retirement System (FRS) a cost
sharing, multiple employer defined benefit public retirement system administered by the State
of Florida Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide retirement and
survivor benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 12tidBl Statutes, establishes

the authority for participant eligibility, contribution requirements, vesting eligibility and

benefit provisions. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplemeniaigrmation. The report may be obtained by writing to

the State of Florida Division of Retirement, Tallahassee, Florida 3P389, or by accessing

their internet site at www.dos.state.fl.us/fgils/retirement.

Employees hired prior to July 1, 201 1r{p@pating in the Pension Plan who retire at or after

age 62 with 6 years of credited service for regular risk or with 30 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for county elected officials of their final
average compensation for each year of credited service; and for special risk, after age 55 with ¢
years or with 25 years of service regardless of age, are entitledti@ameat benefit payable
monthly for life, up to 3.0% for each year of credited service times their final average
compensation. Final average compensation
of salary earned during credited service. \Vsimployees may retire before age 62 for

regular riskand 55 for special riskand receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for
each year prior to normal retirement age.

Employees hired on July 1, 2011 or later participating in the PensionvRtaretire at or after

age 65 with 8 years of credited service for regular risk or with 33 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior managemand 3.0% for county elected officials of their final
average compensation for each year of credited service; and for special risk, after age 60 with ¢
years or with 30 years of service and age 57 or after 30 years of special risk service regardless
of age, or after 33 years of any creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life. Vested employees may retire before age 65 for regular risk and 60 for special
risk and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0&adét year prior to normal

retirement age.
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NOTE 8- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

FRS also provides death and disability benefits andafdsting adjustments. Generally,
membership is compulsory for all fitlme and partime employees. Retirement coverage is
employee contributory. Themployees contribute 3.0%.

Funding Policy

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of
the Florida Legislature. These acts provide that employers pay all contributions at rates
determined each year by the legislature. The rates, as atpgeeengross earnings, are as

follows:
10/1/2Q2 7/1/2018
through through
6/30/208 9/30/20B
Regular class 5.18% 6.95%
Senior management service class  6.30% 18.3%%

El ected County oflG2®@c i al 8003« | as s
Speci al ri sk emplle9pe es 6 190Bm@ s s
DROP plan patrticipants 5.4%% 12.8%%

Contribution rates equal actuarial determined rates. During the year ended September 30,
2013, total payroll for all employees and the retirement contributions for all employees covered
by FRS were as follows:

Payroll Retirement
Expense  Contributions
Board of County Commissioner$ 3,713,539 $ 329,537

Clerk of the Circuit ©urt 651,776 49,929
Sheriff 1,492,705 177,579
Property Appraiser 235,483 25,776
Tax Collector 283,622 25,720
Supervisor of Elections 95,848 13,373

Total $ 6,472,973 $ 621,914

The Countybs contri but i oSeptember30{20léhd Zad2and f or
2011 were $21,914 $644,271and$839,488respectively, which equal the required

contributions. For the year ende8eptember 30, 201@tirement contributions represent

16 0f Countyds total covered payrol/l
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NOTE 8- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Effective July 1, 1998, the Legislature established a Deferred Retirement Option Program
(DROP). This program allows eligible employees to defer receipt of monthly retirement
benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for alpestdo

exceed sixty months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in the
Florida Retirement System Trust Fund and accrue interest.

Employees enrolled in DROP prior to July 1, 2011 earn interest on accumulated benedits in t
Trust Fund at 6.5%; those enrolling on or after July 1, 2011 earn interest at 1.30%. The act of
participating in the program does not <chan
conditions.

NOTE 9-OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Effective for the 2002010 fiscal year, the County has implemented Governmental
AccountingStandard8oard Statement 45, Accounting afdancial Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions for retiree health insurance. The
requirenents of thisStatemenare beingmplementedrospectively, with the actuarially
accrued liability for benefits $813,585 at transition, amortized over 30 yaAacerdingly, for
financial reporting purposes, no liability is reported for the postemploiyhealth care
benefits liability at the date of implementation.

Plan Description

The County has established the Retireeb6s H
Plan, a single employer plan. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 11ZFG80da Statutes,
employees who retire from the County and eligible dependents, may continue to participate in
the group insurance plan. Retirees and their eligible dependents shall be offered the same
health and hospitalization insurance coverags affered to active employees at a premium

cost of no more than the premium cost applicable to active employees. Thg Sldasiizes

the premium rates paid by the retirees by allowing them to participate in the plan at blended
group (implicitly subgiized) premium rates for both active and retired employees. These
ratesprovide an implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, their current and
future claims are expected to result in higher costs to the plan on average than dlotise of
employees. The County currently has approximatétatal active and retired employees
eligible to receive these benefits. No stand alone report is issued for this plan.
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NOTE 9- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Eligibility

A participant is eligible to receive benefits from the plan upon retirement under the Florida
Retirement System plan provisiongo be eligible for retiree benefits, tharficipant must be
covered under the medical plan as an active immediately prior to retirement. Participants not
eligible for retirement at the time of their termination are not eligible for immediate or future
benefits from the plan.

Funding Policy

Although the contribution requirement is established by Statute, the contribution amount
required by plan members and the government are established and may be amended by the
Gulf County Board of County Commissioners. Currently, members receivingjtbgrag the

full costs (total premium) for medical coverage.

The contribution rates effective for other eligileuntyplan members during thegrare
shown below:

Coverage United Healthcare = HSA#1 HSA #2 HSA #3
Retiree $ 495 $ 561 $ 440 $ 416
Retiree and Spouse 845 957 75C 710

The County has not advanfiended or established a funding methodology for the annual Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) costs or the net OPEB obligation. Rather, the funding is
based on a pagsyou-go basis. During the fiscal year, the County provided contributions of
$14,944toward the annual OPEB cost. A Schedule of Employer Contritsitian be found in
required supplementary information immediately following the notes.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 9- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost andet OPEB Obligation

The following table shows the Countyds ann
contributed to the plan, and changeshret Count yds net OPEB oblig
Description

Normal cost (service cost for one year) $ 58,965

Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 45,847

Annual required contribution 104,812

Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,538

Adjustment to annual required contribution (5,115

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 103,235

Contribution toward the OPEB cost (14,944)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 88,291

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 265,030

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 353,321

T h e Coestmatgdinsual OPERo0st, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the planand the net OPEB obligation asSé¢ptember 30, 2028as as follows:

Year ending Annual OPEB Percentage of OPEB Net OPEB

September 30, Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2011 $ 103,325 14.3% $ 176,739
2012 103,325 14.5% 265,030
2013 103,325 14.5% 353,321

Funding Status and Funding Progress

The funding status and funding progress information can be found in the Schedule of Funding
Progress which is presented as required supplementary information immedié@hntpthe

notes. This schedule presents mydtar trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability of
benefits.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 9- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The County had an actuarial valuation completed for the fiscal year Segéeimber 30, 201
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment and termination, mqréaldythe healthcare

cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estinaigemade about the future. Projections of
benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan provisions, as
understood by the employer and participating members, in effect at the valuation date and
include the type of benefitgrovided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and participating members. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
shortterm volatility in actuarially determined accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the letegm perspective of the calculations.

The initial OPEB actuarial valuation method used for the County was the unit credit &ctuaria
cost method. This method is used to estimate the actuarial liabilities and costs. This method
was selected because it produced the best estimate of the OPEB liability and annual cost for th
County employees. The actuarial assumptions include a#6freturn on investments for

the County. The actuarial assumptions also include an annual healthcare cost trend rate. For
the County, this rate begins with an initial rate for 2009iscal year of 6.10%. It fluctuates

in the first fouryearseec hi ng a future yeardéds rate of 5.
liability is being amortized with a level dollar method. The remaining open amortization

period atSeptember 30, 2018 29 years.

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed various risks of loss related to torts; theft of , damage to and
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and/or the public; or damage tc
property of others. The County purchases commercial insurance to cover their rislesf los

The County determined that it was not economically justifiable to carry comprehensive
coverage on certain vehicles and equipment after approximately five years of ownership. The
County carries liability insurance on the aforementioned vehickggmpment. Insurance

against losses are provided for the following types of risk:
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NOTE 10- RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Wor kersd6 compensation and employeros |
General and automobile liability

Real and personal property damage

Public officialsdé liability

Accidental death and dismemberment

SIS

The Countybés coverage for workersd6 compens
Premiums are accruedds on the ultimate costtbat e of t he Countyds
type of risk.

The Sheriff partici pa-nsusance FundtPtogrami-ddrimistecedby S h
the Florida Sheriffods Associ atityrskpoolwhitthe pr
purchases insurance policies on behalf of

for risk associated witeuch coverage. Coverage under this program includes general liability,
public official s 6oyleieahdi Ibiltayn keentd bpownbdl.i ¢ e mp

The funding agreements provide that the-setirance fund will be seBustaininghrough
member premiums and that the Sheriffés 1|ia
companies. Aggregate coverage provided by thditiahind is $L0,000,00Gor professional
liability and $10,000,000 or publ i c of ficial sé coverage.

The Gulf County Sheriff determined that it was not economically justifiable to carry
comprehensive coverage on all vehicles but the Gulf County Sbamiés liability insurance
on the aforementioned vehicles. The GLdunty Sheriff currently covers all claim
settlements and judgments out of available operating resources.

NOTE 11 - AMBULANCE SERVICES

The County has financial responsibility for providing ambulance services throughout the
County. Ambulance accounts receivable, and revenues and expenditures are included in the
general fund of the accompanying financial statement. Accounts receivatie fimbulance
service for the year end&eptember 30, 2028as $,600,14Avhich is net of $,362,115
allowance for uncollectible accounts.
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NOTE 12 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require the County place a final cover on its landfill sites
when it ceases accepting waste, and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at
the site for tirty years after closure. Currently, the County monitors two closed landfills and
operates a Class Il landfill and a construction debris landfill. Receipt of debris at the
construction debris landfill has been indefinitely suspended and the Courttsiqm

officially close the landfill.

Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the
landfill stops accepting waste, the Board reports a portion of these costs as an operating
expense in each period bdsen landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The
$2,529,34%eported as landfill closure and postclosure care liabili§egtember 30, 2013
represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the 2¥eddftiie estimated
capaity of the landfill cells placed in use. The Board will recognize the remaining estimated
cost of closure and postclosure care hB81,126as the remaining estimated capacity is filled
(approximatelylO years). These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform closure
and posiclosure care in 2@Blon those cells placed in use. Actual costs may differ due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The Board is required Istate and federal laws to make annual contributions to an escrow
account to finance a minimum of all closure costs Séptember 30, 201&e Board held
deposits with a fair value ofl$647,37Zor these purposes that are reported as restricted assets
on the balance sheet. This amount include64¥,372hat is restricted for closing Five Points
Landfill. The Board expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on
these annual contributions. However, if inggrearnings are inadequate or additional
postclosure care costse determined to be required, these costs may need to be covered by
charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenue.

NOTE 13- LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Caunty is defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not

presently determinable, it is the opinion
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect onaheifihcondition of
the County.
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NOTE 141 NOTES RECEIVABLE

In July 2011 the County sold real estate to the Riflé and Pistol Club IncThe County
received a promissory note in the amount of $30,000 to be repaid over a ten year period.
Payment is due annually with principal of $3,000 and zero interest. The first payment is due
August 2012 with the last payment due August 2021. The mortgagaireddy the real

estate transferred in the sale.

In May 2011 the County entered into a second mortgage agreement with the Port St. Joe Port
Authority whereby the County made a loan in the amount of $199,000 which is secured by real
estate. The loais to be repaid over a ten year period and has an annual interest rate of 3%.
No payments will be made for the first two years. Thereafter a sum of $10,000 per year will be
paid on the outstanding balance. The note will balloon on April 1, 2021 &t vume all

accrued interest and remaining balance will be due. The balloon balance at that time will be

$178,516.
At September 30, 2018otes receivable consisted of the following
Balance Balance
September 30, Sepember 30,
2012 Additions Deductions 2013
Gulf Rifle Note $ 27,000 $ o} $ (3,000) $ 24,000
Port Authority 199,000 o) o 199,000

$ 226000 $ o $_ (3,0000 $ 223000

NOTE 15- GRANTS

The County participates in several state and federal grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by grantors or their representatives. The audits of these
programs for, or including, the year endggptember 30, 2018Bave not yet been
accepted/ approved by the grantors. Accord
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at a future date. The
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallobsedranting agencies cannot be
determined, although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 16- NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION

Net positionrepresent the difference between total assets and liabilities andeggerizagd as follows:

Net investment in capital asset§otal capital assets, net of debt issued in the acquisition of
these assets and net of depreciation is reported separately inplosinehsection.

Restricted for growth related capital expans Impact fee and system development charges
restricted for growth related capital expansion.
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NOTE 16- NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION (continued)

Restricted for transportation projects: Gas taxes and other revenues restricted for
transportation improvements.

Restricted for tourist development: Tourist development tax proceeds are restricted for tourist
related activities.

Restricted for Coregvation: Various impact and other fees restricted to conservation projects
and expenses.

Restricted for Public Safety: Grants and fees restricted for use in various areas of public
safety.

Restricted for Court functions: Balances are restrifdedse in the County Court System.
Restricted for debt service: Balances are restricted in conjunction with the issuance of bonds
and have been funded by operating transfers from the appropriate funds. The use of monies in
the sinking fund is restrted to the payment of principal and interest on {targh debt.
Restricted for Public Health: Restricted for use to Hospital and EMS function.
Unrestricted: Balances are not restricted for specific purposes.
Governmental funds report fund balanesseither spendable or ngpendable. Spendable fund
balances are further classified as restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned depending upon the
extent to which there are external or internal constraints on the spending of these fund balances.
Non-spendable fund balance: Amounts that are not in spendable form or that are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Items that are not spendable also include inventories,
prepaid amounts and long term portions of loans and notesablzias well as property held for
resale.
Spendable fund balance:
Restricted fund balandeAmounts that can be spent only for specific purposes through

restrictions placed upon them by external resource providers such as creditors, grantors or
contributors; or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

54



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 16- NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION (continued)

Committed fund balance Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes determined by
the Countyods highest decision making autho
Commitments may be modified or removed only by the Board of County Commissione
through the same formal action that created the original commitment.

Assigned fund balandeAmounts that are intended to be spent for specific purposes as
determined by the Board of County Commissioners, but that are neither restricted nor
commitied to the specific purpose.

Unassigned fund balantdJnassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the
Countyds general fund. Amounts in this cl
restricted, committed or assigned. Ungsad fund balance may also include negative

balances for any governmental fund whose expenditures have exceeded the amounts restrictec
committed or assigned for those specific purposes.

When both restricted and unrestricted amounts are availablethyGpends the restricted amounts
first, unless prohibited by law, grant agreements or other contractual arrangement. Further, when
committed fund balance is available the County will use it first, followed by assigned fund balance
and then unassignedrfd balance for purposes in which any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.
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NOTE 16- NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION (continued)

A detailed schedule of fund balanceSaptember 30, 2018 as follows:

State
Housing Other Total
General Initiative Public Governmental Governmental
Fund Partnership Improvement Funds Funds
Nonspendable:

Prepaids/deposits $ 55,656 $ 0o $ 0o 3 2,265 $ 57,92
Total nonspendable fund balance 55,656 o) o) 2,265 57,92
Restricted for:

Community redevelopment 0 121,598 0 0 121,598

Transportation 0 0 0 388,953 388,953

Bond covenants or debt service 0 0 2,180,044 42,359 2,222,403

Growth related capital expansion 0 0 0 217,346 217,346

Capital projects o} o} o} 25,677 25,677

Tourist development 0 0 0 1,598,694 1,598,694

Conservation 1,647,372 0 0 852,418 2,499,790

Public Safety 56,640 0 0 1,619,405 1,676,045

Courtfunctions 49,289 0 0 394,524 443,813

Health 23,451 0 0 830,354 853,805

Other purposes o) o) o) 174 174
Total restricted fund balance 1,776,752 121,58 2,180,044 5,969,902 10,048,296
Committed for:

Public Safety o) o] o] 216,728 216,728

Conservation 54,642 o] o] 193,393 248,035
Total committed fund balance 54,642 o] o] 410,121 464,763
Assigned for:

Infrastructure 313,837 o] o] 0 313,837

Public Safety o) o] o] 43,940 43,940

Federal and state grants 12,082 o] o] 0 12,082

Other purposes 3,050,015 o] o] o] 3,050,015
Total assigned fund balance 3,375,934 o] o] 43,940 3,419,874
Unassigned: 4,656,946 o] o] o] 4,656,946

Total Fund Balances $ 9919930 $ 121,598 $2,180,044 $ 6,426,228 $ 18,647,800
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NOTE 1717 COMMITMENTS

The Gulf County Sheriff has an interlo@reement with the City of Wewahitchka, whereby
personnel from the Sheriffoés office provid
Wewabhitchka. As consideration therefore, the Sheriff receives paymerg8,608annually

from the City.

The Gulf Cainty Sheriff entered into a service agreement with the City of Port St. Joe Police
Department, whereby the Sheriff provides all dispatching services required within the City of
Port St. Joe. The City of Port St. Joe pays the Gulf Cdbhmyiff the sumof $16,500per

guarter, in consideration for these services.

NOTE 18 - WATER SYSTEM OPERATIONS

The County owns the two remaining water systems, Williamsburg/Methodist Hill and Oak
Grove. The City of Wewahitchka operates the Williamsburg/Methodist Hill Water System.
Although there is not an active intleical agreement this water system continues to be

operated by the City of Wewahitchka under the terms of the 1993octdrageement which
terminated in 1994. The City of Port St. Joe operates the Oak Grove Water System. Neither
one of these water systems brings any revenue to the County. The only expense to the County
for either of these two water systems is depreciation.

57



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATI ON
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Schedul e of Funding Progress or
Other Post Employment Benefits Plan
Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Valuation  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual Percentage
Date Value of  Liability Actuarial Funded Covered of Covered
As of Assets  (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Oct 1, (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-a)/c)
2008 $ 0 $ 813,585% 813,585 0.0% N/A N/A
200 o] o] o] 0.0% N/A N/A
2010 o] 792,791 792,791 0.0% N/A N/A
Scheduleof Bnp |l oyer Contri butions for the
Other Post Employment Benefits Plan
Fiscal Year Annual
Ended Actual Required Percentage
September 30,Contribution  Contribution  Contributed
2011 $ 14,944 $103,325 14.5%
2012 $ 14,944 $103,325 14.5%
2013 $ 14,944 $103,325 14.5%
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenud-unds

SECONDARY ROAD AND BRIDGE To account for fuel taxes, not obligated for debt repayment,
and certain expenditures for road and bridge construction and maintenance.

FINES AND FORFEITURES To account for fines earmarked for law enforcement and corrections.

TOURIST DEVELOPMENT TRUST To account for a 4% local option tourist development tax
levied for tourist promotion and beach and shoreline maintenance.

SHERI FF6 SPECI AL REVENUE

Forfeiture fund To account for revenues and expenditures relating to various forfeitures.

DRI/EAR IMPACT 1 To account for funds received associated with the development of regional
impact for the Gulf County community, WindMark Beach.

CLERK MODERNIZATION TRUSTI To account for the statutory surcharge on recording
documents paid to the Clerk of the Circuit Co
management system and for funding caatated technology needs of the Clerk.

ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 86127 To account for additional court costs of traffic infractions used
for administering traffic violations.

HUD CDBG’1 The Community Development Block Grant program provides resources to aid in
affordable housing and create jobs throughetkigansion and retention of businesses.

FIRE CONTROL DISTRICTS To account for property taxes levied within the following dependent
special districts for fire prevention and control:

Howard Creek St. Joe
Tupelo Overstreet

DISASTER CONTINGENCYi To account for cash committed to pay overtime during disasters.

HOSPITALT To account for local option discretionary sales surtax levied and expenditures that help
fund operations at the local hospital.

WIRELESS 911 To account for grants awarded frahe State of Florida E911 Board for
enhancement of the E911 system.

CORRECTIONAL FACILITY IMPACT FEEi To account for the receipt and expenditure of the
correctional facilities impact fees collected from all qualifying new construction. The impacuge m

be used for the acquisition/construction of correctional facilities.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Fundgcontinued)

EMS IMPACT FEEI To account for the receipt and expenditure of emergency medical service
impact fees collected from all qualifying new construction. The impact fees must be used for
acquisition/construction of emergency service facilities.

PARKS AND RECREATION IMPACTFEET To account for the receipt and expenditure of parks
impact fees collected from ally qualifying new construction. The impact fees must be used for the
acquisition/construction of park facilities.

E911i To account for fees levied on each communicetiservice subscriber for funding certain costs
of the County associated with the E911 system.

MOSQUITO CONTROLT To account for the receipt and expenditure of state grant funds used for
mosquito control.

BEACH RENOVATIONT To account for activity relatg to the Cape San Blas beachoairishment
and reconstruction project funded with bond proceeds.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES To account for the receipt and expenditurgraints
awarded by the Florida Department of Health. The funds must be usegdrtve and expand
emergency medical services.

INDUSTRIAL PARK EDAT To account for the receipt and expenditure of Economic Development
Administration Funds. The funds are to be used to develop working programs that benefit the
economy of the County.

CONSTRUCTION AND ACQUISITIONT To account for activity relating to the construction and
acquisition of assets.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTT To account for community development grant
activity.

Debt Service

M.S.T.U. DEBT SERVICE To account for pleged ad valorem taxes and repayment of bonds issued
for renourishment and reconstruction of the beachfront at Cape San Blas.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent$

Due from other funds

Due from other governments

Prepaid expense
Accounts receivable (net)

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
Fund balances

Fines Secondary Tourist Sheri ffos Clerk
and Road and Development Special DRI/EAR Modernization
Forfeitures Bridge Trust Revenue Impact Trust

315,179 $ 388953 $ 1,588,387 $ 18,215 $ 193,393 $ 243,591

o} o} o} o} o} o}

o} o} 89,877 o} o} o}

o} o} 2,265 o} o} o}

o} o} 225 o) o) o)
315,179 388,953 1,680,754 18,215 193,393 243,591

5,091 o} 67,730 o} o} o}

o} o} 10 o} o} o}

o) o) 12,056 o) o) o)

5,091 o} 79,796 o) o) o)

o} o} 2,265 o} 0 0
266,148 388,953 1,598,693 215 0 243,591

o} o} o} 18,000 193,393 0

43,940 o} o) o) o) o)
310,088 388,953 1,600,958 18,215 193,393 243,591
$ 315179 $ 388953 $ 1680754 $ 18215 $ 193393 $ 243,591
(Continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent$

Duefrom other funds

Due from other governments

Prepaid expense
Accounts receivable (net)

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
Fund balances

Administrative Howard Creek St. Joe Tupelo Overstreet
Order HUD Fire Fire Fire Fire
86-12 CDBG Control Control Control Control
150,933 % 172 $ 5939 $ 0937599 $ 87,989 % 15,451

o} o} o} o} o} o}

o} o} o} 6,700 o} 4

o} o} o} o} o} o}

o) 199,000 o) o) o) o)
150,933 199,172 5,939 944,299 87,989 15,451
o) o) 130 30,255 832 188

o} o} o} o} o} o}
o) 199,000 50 3,045 226 36
o} 199,000 180 33,300 1,058 224

o} o} o} o} 0 0
150,933 172 5,759 910,999 86,931 15,227

o} o} o} o} 0 0

o} o} o) o) o) o)
150,933 172 5,759 910,999 86,931 15,227
$ 150933 $ 199,172 $ 5939 $ 0944299 § 87,989 $ 15,451
(Continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Construction Correctional EMS
Disaster Wireless and Facility Impact
Contingency Hospital 911 Acquisition Impact Fee Fee
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent$ 198,728 $ 708,314 $ 594 $ 282 $ o} $ 0
Due from other funds 6] 6] 6] 6] o) o)
Due from other governments o} 122,040 o} o} o} o}
Prepaid expense o} o} o} o} s} s}
Accounts receivable (net) o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total assets 198,728 830,354 594 282 o) o)
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Vouchers payable o) o) d d o} o}
Due to other funds o) o) 6] 6] 0 0
Deferred revenue o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total liabilities o) o) o) o) o] o]
Fund balances
Nonspendable o} o} o} o} 0 0
Restricted 6] 830,354 594 282 6] 6]
Committed 198,728 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total fund balances 198,728 830,354 594 282 o] o]
Total liabilities and
Fund balances $ 198728 $ 830,354 $ 594 $ 282 $ o) $ o)
(Continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent$
Due from other funds
Due from other governments

Prepaid expense

Accounts receivable (net)

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities
Vouchers payable
Due to other funds
Deferredrevenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and
Fund balances

Parks Emergency Industrial
and Mosquito Beach Medical Park
Recreation E911 Control Renovation Services EDA
25396 $ 227,223 $ 98,809 $ 852418 $ 4999 $ 217,289
o} 10,163 o} o} o} o}
o} o} o} o} o} o}
o} o} o} o} o} o}
o} o} o) o) o) o)
25,396 237,386 98,809 852,418 4,999 217,289
o) 1,256 2,700 o} o} o}
o} 3 o} o} o} o}
o) o) o) o) 3,702 o)
o) 1,259 2,700 o] 3,702 o]
o} o} o} o} 0 0
25,396 236,127 96,109 852,418 1,297 217,289
o} o} o} o} 0 0
o} o} o) o) o) o)
25,396 236,127 96,109 852,418 1,297 217,289
$ 25396 $ 237386 $ 98809 $ 852418 $ 4999 $ 217,289
(Continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SpecialRevenue Debt Service

Total
M.S.T.U.  Nonmajor
Debt Governmental
CDBG Service Funds

Assets

Cash and castqguivalents $ (3,068) $ 49,828 $6,326,613

Due from other funds 0 0 10163

Due from othegovernments 7,825 o) 226,442

Prepaid expense o) o) 2,265

Accounts receivable(net) o) o) 199,225
Total Assets 4,757 49,828 _ 6,764,708
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities

Vouchers payable 4,700 0 112,882

Due to other funds 0 7,470 7,483

Deferred revenue o) o) 218,115
Total Liabilities 4,700 7,470 338,480
Fund balances

Nonspendable o} o} 2,265

Restricted 57 42,358 5,969,902

Committed o) o) 410,121

Assigned o} o} 43,940
Total fund balances 57 42,358 6,426,228
Total liabilities and

fund balances $ 4757 $ 49,828 $6,764,708
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
and other

Totalrevenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Economicenvironment
Transportation
Court related
Human services
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of

revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers out
Transfersn
Debt proceeds

Total other financing
Sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances- beginning

Fund balances- ending
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Fines Secondary Tourist Sheri ffés Clerk
and Road and Development Special DRI/EAR Modernization
Forfeitures Bridge Trust Revenue Impact Trust

o} $ 58,010 $ 1,086,216 $ o} o} $ o}

o} o} o} o} o} o}
36,620 o} 33,950 o} o} 47,679
2,000 o) 1,501 o) o) 399
38,620 58,010 1,121,667 o) o) 48,078

o} o} o} o} o} o}

2,493 o} o} 7,500 o} o}

o} o} 107,887 o} o} o}

o} o} 855,034 o} o} o}

o} 78,355 o} o} o} o}
4,982 o} o} o} o} 18,435

o} o} o} o} 0 0

o} o} o} o} o} o}

0 0 27,821 0 s} o}

o} o} o) o) o) o)
7,475 78,355 990,742 7,500 o) 18,435
31,145 (20,345) 130,925 (7,500 o) 29,643

o} o} o} o} 0 0

o} o} o} 20,000 o} o}

o} o} o) o) o) o)

o) o) o) 20,000 o) o)
31,145 (20,345) 130,925 12,500 0 29,643
278,943 409,298 1,470,033 5,715 193,393 213,948
$ 310088 $ 388953 $ 1600958 $ 18215 $ 193393 $§ 243,591

(Continued)



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Administrative Howard Creek St. Joe Tupelo Overstreet
Order HUD Fire Fire Fire Fire
86-12 CDBG Control Control Control Control
Revenues
Taxes $ o} $ o} $ 15379 $ 323925 $ 50254 $ 22,133
Intergovernmental o} o} 581 14,200 3,757 1,178
Charges for services o} o} o} o} o} o}
Investment earnings
and other 265 o) o) 3,125 o) o)
Totalrevenues 265 o} 15,960 341,250 54,011 23,311
Expenditures
Current
General government o} o} o} o} o} o}
Public safety o) o) 11,472 178,430 37,260 23,554
Physical environment o} o} o} o} s} s}
Economic environment o} o} o} o} o} o}
Transportation o} o} o} o} o} o}
Court related o} o} o} o} o} o}
Human services o} o} o} o} 0 0
Culture and recreation o} o} o} o} o} o}
Capital outlay o) o) 0 27,927 3,010 1,365
Debt service o} o} o) 28,325 o) o)
Total expenditures o) o) 11472 234,682 40,270 24,919
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures 265 o) 4,488 106,568 13,741 (1,608)
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out o} o} (1,369 (34,209 (6,158 (2,339
Transfers in o} o} o} o} o} o}
Debt proceeds o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total other financing
Sources (uses) o) o) (1,367 (34,209 (6,158 (2,339
Net change in fund balances 265 o) 3,127 72,366 7,583 (3,942)
Fund balances- beginning 150,668 172 2,632 838,633 79,348 19,169
Fund balances- ending $ 150933 $ 172 $ 5759 $ 0910999 $ 86931 $ 15,227
(Continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Construction  Correctional EMS
Disaster Wireless and Facility Impact
Contingency Hospital 911 Acquisition Impact Fee Fee
Revenues
Taxes $ o} $ 672845 $ o} $ o} $ o} $ o}
Intergovernmental 198,728 0 29,108 0 0 0
Charges for services o} o} o} o} s} s}
Investment earnings
and other o} 767 21 5 o) o)
Totalrevenues 198,728 673,612 29,129 5 o) o)
Expenditures
Current
Generalgovernment o} o} o} o} 0 0
Public safety o} o} 29,108 o} o} o}
Physical environment o} o} o} o} o} o}
Economic environment o} o} o} o} o} o}
Transportation o} o} o} 3,820 o} s}
Court related o} o} o} o} o} o}
Human services o} 706,363 o} o} o} o}
Culture and recreation o} o} o} o} 0 0
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 7,671 19,772
Debt service o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total expenditures o) 706,363 29,108 3,820 7,671 19,772
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures 198,728 (32,751 21 (3,819 (7,671) (19,772
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out o} o} o} o} o} o}
Transfers in o} o} o} o} 0 0
Debt proceeds o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total other financing
Sources (uses) o) o) o) o) o) o)
Net change in fundbalances 198,728 (32,75) 21 (3,819 (7,671) (29,772
Fund balances- beginning o) 863,105 573 4,097 7,671 19,772
Fund balances- ending $ 198728 $ 830354 $ 594 $ 282 $ 3 $ 3
(Continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special Revenue

Parks Emergency Industrial
and Mosquito Beach Medical Park
Recreation E911 Control Renovation Services EDA
Revenues
Taxes $ 0 $ 0 $ d $ d $ d $ )
Intergovernmental o} 132,347 18,500 o} 49,183 o}
Charges for services o} o} o} o} o} o}
Investment earnings
and other o) 359 169 1,366 33 7,725
Totalrevenues o} 132,706 18,659 1,366 49,216 7,725
Expenditures
Current
General government o} o} o} o} o} o}
Public safety o) 105,374 d d 4 4
Physical environment o} o} o} o} s} s}
Economic environment o} o} o} o} o} 1,836
Transportation o} o} o} o} o} o}
Court related o} o} o} o} o} o}
Human services 0 0 3,741 0 0 0
Culture and recreation o} o} o} o} o} o}
Capital outlay 1,412 1,846 17,542 0 47,990 0
Debt service o} o} o) o) o) o)
Total expenditures 1,412 107,220 21,283 o) 47,990 1,836
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,412 25,486 (2,619 1,366 1,226 5,889
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out o} o} o} o} 0 0
Transfers in o} o} o} o} o} o}
Debt proceeds o) o) o) o) o) o)
Total other financing
Sources (uses) o) o) o) o) o) o)
Net change in fund balances (1,412 25,486 (2,619 1,366 1,226 5,889
Fund balances- beginning 26,808 210,641 98,723 851,052 71 211,400

Fund balances- ending $ 25396 $ 236127 $ 96109 $ 852418 $ 1297 $ 217,289
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Special RevenueDebt Service

Total
M.S.T.U. Nonmajor
Debt Governmental
CDBG Service Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 0 $1,174,346 $3,403,108
Intergovernmental 376,565 8,464 832,611
Charges for services o} o} 118,249
Investment earningsnd other o} 1,775 19,510
Total Revenues 376,565 _ 1,184,585 4,373,478
Expenditures
Current
Generalgovernment o} o} o}
Public safety 0 0 395,191
Physical environment 312,844 0 420,731
Economic environment 63,721 0 920,591
Transportation 0 0 82,175
Court related 0 0 23,417
Human services 0 0 710,104
Culture and recreation o} o} o}
Capital outlay o} o} 156,356
Debt service o) 1,847,578 _ 1,875,903
Total expenditures 376,565 _ 1,847,578 _ 4,584,468
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenditures o) (662,993) _ (210,990
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out o} o} (44,055)
Transfers in 0 0 20,000
Debt proceeds o) o) o)
Total other financing
Sources (uses) o) o) (24,055)
Net change inFund balance o) (662,993) (235,045
Fund balancesi beginning 57 705,351 _ 6,661,273
Fund balancesi ending $ 57 $ 42358 $6.,426,228
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Agency Funds

AgencyFunds - Clerk Sheriff
Fee Article V  Registry of Child Jury and Individual
Trust Trust Court Support Witness Bonds Depository
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 21681 $114,356 $ 35449 $ 2,164 $ 4223 % 24500 $ 430
Accounts receivable
(net) 476 o) o) o] o] o) 3,966
Due from other funds o) 190 67,767 o] o] o] o]
Total Assets 22,157 114,546 103,216 2,164 4,223 24,500 4,396
Liabilities
Accounts payable 111 10 o} o} o} o} o}
Due to individuals 4,080 2,716 98,985 o] o] 24,500 430
Due to other funds 11,560 91,157 4,231 1,838 1,501 0 3,966
Due to other
governments 6,406 20,663 o) 326 2,722 o) o)
Total Liabilities $ 22157 $§ 114546 $ 103216 $ 2,164 $ 4,223 $ 24500 $ 4,396
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

AGENCY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Assets

Cash anc¢tashequivalents
Accounts receivablfet)
Due from other funds

Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to individuals

Due to other funds

Due to othegovernments

Total Liabilities

Agency FundsiTax Collector

Tourist
Development

Hunt/ Tag
Fish Tax Agency Totals

$ 2 $ 74 $ 218,396 $ 8374 $ 429,649
o} o} o} o} 4,442

o} o} o} o} 67,957

2 74 218,396 8,374 502,048

o} o} 4,891 o} 5,012

o} o} 187,105 o} 317,816

2 74 19,121 o} 133,450

o} o} 7,279 8,374 45,770

$ 2 $ 74 $ 218,396 $ 8,374 $ 502,048
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S MANAGEMENT LETT

HonorableMembers of the
Board of County Commissioners
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the Gulf County, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year
endedSeptember 30, 2013nd have issued our report thereon datet 9, 2014

We canducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contain@dvernment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United StatesQaul circular A-133,Audits of States,

Local Governments, and Nd#rofit OrganizationsWe have i ssued our I ndep
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters, Independent
Audi tor 06 s Re gowith Regumementhatgduld lzave a direct and material effect on

each Major Federal Program and State Project and on Internal Control over Compiigm€dyiB

Circular A-133 and Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor GerserdISchedule of Findings and

Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which atudated2014should be
considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 1(Raf€s of the Auditor
General,which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned
auditorbés report.

Section 10.554(1)1., Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit reportCorrective actions have been taken to addredifis and

recommendations made in the preceding annual financial report to the extent considered necessary b
the County, except as repeated under the heading current year findings and recommendations. See
also Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Firgs.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined tGatf County Floridacomplied with Section 218.415,

Florida Statutes.
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Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any findings and recommendations to improve financial management. In connectiour with
audit,we did not have any such recommendations.

Section10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of th&uditor General, requires that we addresdations of provisions

of contracts, grant agreements, or abuse, that have an effect on the financial statementssttiadimns le
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
findings.

Section 10.554(1)(®., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary governmeand each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial stateme@alf Toenty,

Florida was established by the Constituion of the State of Florida, Article VI, Se¢ghnThe

name or official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the
reporting entity are disclosed in note 1 of the notes to the financial statements.

Our management letteriistended solely for the informaticaand use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, federal and other state granting agencies, and applicable management, and is not
intended to be and shouldtrbe used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Voree CR2 LCC

Vance CPA LLC
June 9, 2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT A WRBPORDBNISTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Members of the
Board of Cainty Commissioners
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States o
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contaif@avernment Auditing Standards
issued by th Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the businedype activities, each major fundnd the aggregate remaining fund information

of Gulf County, Floridaas of and for the year end8dptembeB0, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise @df County Floridd s basi ¢ fi nanci
and have issued our report thereon datete 9, 2014

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we const@eliedounty Floridé s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpd®xpressing our opinions on the financial

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective@asGafunty

Floridds i nternal control. Accordingly, Gué do n
County Florid@® mternal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, matienweaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findimgsponses

we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses a
significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal contraéxists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, ot
detect and correct, misstatents on a timely basis. rAaterial weaknesis a deficiency, or a
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combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
materi al mi sstatement of the ent irtdgtedtedafdi nanci
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses to be material weaknesses. -{2@03.32 and 2013).

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasona&bhssurance about whetl@&ulf County Floridd s f i nanci al s
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which ceudddiract and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results aftests disclosedo instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported u@G®rernment Auditing Standards

Gulf County Florida6s Response to Findings

Gulf County Floridd s r esponse to the f i nsdribadqshe acchmpanying i e
schedule of findings and responsé&ulf County Floridd s r esponse was not sul
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
it.

Purpose of this R@ort

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entityés internal c oapadrtrisan integnal partof aic audit pdrforraed m e .
accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardsn consi dering the entity
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Voree CR2 LCC

VanceCPA LLC
June 9, 2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S REPORT ON COMPLI ANCE V
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A -133

Honorable Members of the
Board of County Commissioners
Gulf County, Florida

Report on Compliance for EachMajor Federal Program

We have audited Gulf County Floridads compli a
described in th©MB Circular A133 Compliance Supplemehat could have a direct and material

effect on each oBulf County Floridd s  medgral progfams for the year endgaptembeB0,

2013. Gulf County Floridd@ s maj or f eder al programs are iden-
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and responses.

Management 6s Responsibility
Managements responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Audi tords Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for ea@uléfCounty, Floridd s maj or
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable todiabaudits contained iGovernment

Auditing Standardsssued by the comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circdl@BA
Audits of States, Local Governments, and-Roofit Organizations.Those standards and OMB
CircularA-133 require thatve plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have «
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includesiaganmna test

basis, evidence aboGulf County, Floridé s compl i ance with those req
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini@mgiance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determinatarif @ounty, Floridé s
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion,Gulf County, Floridecomplied, in all material respectsith the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could hav
programs for the year end&gptember 3@®013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management oGulf County, Fbridais responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we conside@df County, Floridd s i rcangot ovea |

compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion omgdiance for each major federal program and to test and report

on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB CircuiaB3, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Acgordangb

not express an opinion on the effectivenesSwf County Floridd s i nt er nal contr ol

A deficiency in internal control over complianegists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow managemengmployees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basisnaferial weakness in internal control over
compliances a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detectezbaredted, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliansea deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less seeethan a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph othis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consides toaterial weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the tesaflthat testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Vorer CR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
June 9, 2014

81



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Contract/Grant
Federal Awards Program CEDA # Number Expenditures
U.S. Department Of Agriculture
Passed through Florida Department of Agriculture/Forestry
VFA 50/50 Grargi South Gulf Co. 2012013 10.664 201213 6,700
Total Department of Agriculture 6,700
U.S. Department ofHomeland Security
State of Florida Homeland Security Grant Program (SHEIR)67 12-DS927-02-33-01-274 49,798
State and Local Asst (SLA) 123 97.042 13FG-86-02-33-01-090 41,281
Stateand Local Asst (SLA) 134 97.042 14-FG-1M-02-33-01-090 14,285
Total CFDA 55,566
Total Department of Homeland Security 105,364
U.S. Department OfHousing and UrbanPlanning
Passed throughlorida Department of Community Affairs
FFY 2011 Federally Funded Sub Gré@8DBG-Housing) 14.228  12DB-OH-02-33-01-H04 12,325
FFY 2008 Supplemental Disaster Recoy@REF) 14.228 12DB-P502-33-01-K46 364,240
Total CFDA 376,565
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 376,565
U.S.Department of Health and Human Services
Passed througRlorida Department of Revenue
2012-2013 Child Support Enforcement Title ND 93.563 (CSS23 1,366
2012-2013 Child Support Enforcement Title MD 93.563 CD323 79,717
2010-2011 Child Support Enforcement Title ND 93.563 CD323 213
Total CFDA 81,296
Total Department afluman and Health Services 81,296
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Federal Awards Program CFEDA #

Contract/Grant

Number Expenditures

U.S. Department OfJustice
Passed through Florida Department of Law Enforcement
DARE and Community Services Deputy 16.738

Total Department of Justice

Federal Highway Administration

Passed through Florida Department of Transportation

Design of CR386 Overstreet Road Sign &
Pavement Markings

20.205
Total Federal Highway Administration
U.S.Fish and Wildlife Services

Passed through Florida Fish & Wildlife Conservation

Sport Fish RestorationBoat Acces§Lands Landing) 15.605

Total Department of Fish and Wildlife Services

Total Federal
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2012JAGCGGULF-1-D7-050 20,470

20,470

4132022-38-01 11,800

11,800

11146

6,000

6,000

$ 608,195



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Contract/Grant

State Financial Assistance Projects CFEDA # Number Expenditures
Florida Department of Environmental Protection

Small County Solid Waste Grant 37.012 312SC 58,851

Total Department of Environmental Protection 58,851
Florida Department of Transportation

Small County Outreach CR30A 55.009 SCOP 429978-58-01 26,305

Roadside Beautificatioh White City Bridge 55.@3 4165338-58-17 99,349

Total CFSA 125,654

Total Department of Transportation 125,654
Florida Department of Community Affairs i Emergency Management Programs

Emergency Management Preparedness and Assistance 52.008  13-BG-83-02-33-01-023 79,478

Emergency Management Preparedness and Assistance 52.008 14-BG-83-02-33-01-023 30,464

Total CFSA 109,942

Total Department of Community Affairs 109,942
Florida Department of State

Operation of Equalization State Aid Grants 45.09 13-ST-43 45,215

Total Department oBtate 45,215
Florida E911 Board

201213 Rural County Grant Program 72.001 12-1010 4,167

201213 Rural County Grant Program 72.001 1349 16,360

201011 Rural CountyGrant Program 72.001 11-04-36 8,581

Total Florida E911 Board 29,108
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (continued)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Contract/Grant

State Financial Assistance Projects CEDA # Number Expenditures
Florida Department of Health

Bureau of Energency Medical Services 64.003 C0023 1,193

Bureau of Emergency Medical Services 64.003 M1074 47,990

Total CFSA 49,183

Total Department of Health 49,183
Florida Housing Finance Authority

20092010 State Housing Initiative Program 52.901 2009/2010 289,195

20112012 State Housing Initiative Program 52.901 2011/2012 79,529

Total Department ofinance Authority 368,724
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services

Mosquito Control/Waste Tire Abatement Grant 42.003 20092010 21,283

Total Department afgricultureand Consumer Services 21,283
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity

Technical Assistance GrantGrowth Management 40.024 201213 30,000

Total Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 30,000
Total State $ 837,961
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Note 17 Basisof Accounting

The supplementary schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance includes
the federal and state grant activity of the County. Expenditures are presented on the modified accrual
basis of accountingThis methodix onsi st ent with the preparatior
statements.

Note 21 Reporting Entity

For the purpose of the supplementary schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance the County includes all the funds of the pyig@ernment as defined by GASB Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity.

Note 31 PassThrough Awards

The Board received certain federal awards from-fassigh awards of the State of Florida. The total
amount of such pagkrough awards isicluded on the supplementary schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Sectonli Summary of Redultdi t or 6's

Financial Statements

Type of auditords report i s &ngealfied
Internal control over financial reporting
Material weakness(es) identified? _X_yes ___no
Significant deficiency(is)identified not
considered to be material weagses? ____yes _X_none
reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted:____yes X _no
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major programs
material weakness(eg)entified? ____yes X no
Significant deficiency (ies) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? ___yes _X_none
Reported
Type of auditords report issued on compliance
for major programs Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circulafl33, Section
.510(a) or Section 10.557, Rules of the Auditor General? _ yes X no

Identification of major federal awards/state financialstaace projects:

CFEDA/CSFA Number Name of Federal Award/State Financial Assistance Project
14.228 Community Development Block Grant
52.901 State Housing Initiative Program

(continued)
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES(continued)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs $300,000

Auditee qualified as lowisk auditee? X _yes none

Section II'T Financial Statement Findings

See Summary Schedule of Current Year Findings

Section Il 7 Findings and Questioned Cost$ Major Federal Award Programs

No findings or questioned costs in the current year.

Section IVT Findings and Questioned Cost$ Major State Financial Assistance Projects
No findings or questioned costs in the current year.

Section Vi Other Issues

No Corrective Action Plan is required because there were no findings required to be reported under the Florida single
Audit Act.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

12-01 Seqgreqgation of Duties

Status: See current year findings.

12-02 Significant Adjustments to Financial Records

Status: See current year findings.

12-03 Preparation of Financial Statements

Status: See current year findings.

12-04 Ambulance Billing

Status:Resolved.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

13-01 Segregation of Duties (Prior Year12-01,11-08 and10-01)

The following Constitutional Officers were considered to lack proper segregation of duties necessary
for proper internal controls: the Sheaccountinggs O
and administrative duties includes the requirement that no single person has (1) the ability to authorize
transactions, (2) access to assets, and (3) the ability to record financial transactions. The failure to
maintain separation of these ftions subjects the County to risk that material misstatements or fraud
may occur and not be detected by employees in a timely manner during the performance of their
assigned tasks. The limited number of employees within the offices precludes idealtsegoéga

duties. We recommend that in the absence of the ability to hire additional employees, that alternative
procedures, including additional oversight with regard to certain functions, be performed regularly to
mitigate the risks caused by this defiayg in internal controls.

RECOMMENDATION i Mitigating procedures including additional oversight with regard to
certain duties should be performed regularly in the absence of hiring additional employees

RESPONSET Due to the limited number of employeéss virtually impossible to maintain
complete segregation of accounting and administrative duties among employees. However,
every effort is being made to accomplish effective internal controls.

13-02 (Prior Year 12-02)

The Following constitutionalaffc er s wer e consi dered to | ack th
Office, and Tax Collector. Significant adjustments to the financial records were made in order for the
financial statements to conform to generally accepted accounting principles.

RECOMMENDATION i Resources should be acquired or made available to provide
expertise necessary to adjust financial statements during the year to comply with generally
accepted accounting principles.

RESPONSET We realize that ideally our internal contsyistem should be designed in a

manner that ensures the accuracy of the financial statements and that the Auditors should not
have to recommend journal entries to see that they conform to generally accepted accounting
principles. We do not feel that in thear future the benefits derived from investing in the
resources necessary for us to implement an effective internal control system would outweigh
the cost of those resources.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (continued)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

12-03 (Prior Year 12-03)

The following constitutional officers were co
Office, and Tax Collector. Inadequate design of internal control over the preparatioriiédicel
statements being audited gives rise to a significant deficiency in internal control.

RECOMMENDATION i Resources should be obtained or made available to provide
expertise necessary to prepare financial statements that comply with generallgdaccept
accounting principles.

RESPONSET Our Auditors assist us with the preparation of our financial statements. We do

not feel that in the near future the benefits derived from investing in the resources necessary fo
us to prepare our own financsthtements would outweigh the cost of those resources.
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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSG REPORT

To the Honorable Rebecca L. Norris
Gulf County Clerk of the Circuit Court
Gulf County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying fund financial statements of Gulf County, Florida, Clerk of the
Circuit Court, (Clerk), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to th
financial statementsyhi ch col |l ectively comprise the Cler}l
table of contents.

Management 6s Responsibility for the financi al
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial satement
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparatior
and fair presentation of financial statements thaffras from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

|l ndependent Auditords Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standgedsrally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contairi@oviernment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the Unite States. Those standards require that we plan an
perform the adit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free o
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosure
in the financial statements. The proceduréssect ed depend on the audit
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud «
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevantttoi the ¥ro s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that a
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenes
of the entitydsordingly, e ex@mess no suohtopimdn.. An awdlit aso includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significal
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of th
financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fc
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material retgects,
financial position of the funds of the Clerk as of September 30, 2013, and the respective changes i
financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year ther
ended in accordance with accounting principles gélgexecepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the Gulf County
Florida Clerk of Court and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the fingiosigdion of Gulf
County, Florida as of September 30, 2013, and the changes in its financial position for the year ther
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Governmeat Auditing Standards

In accordance wittGovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dated May 21,
2014 and on our consideration of the Clerkos
of its compliance with certain prstons of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control ove
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not tdepasvopinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance witBovernment Auditing Standardsn consi dering Cl er |
over financial reporting and comahce.

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Administrative Total
General Modernization Order 86-12 Governmental
Fund Trust Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 32,839 $ 243,591 $ 150,933 $ 427,363
Due from other funds 33,326 o} o} 33,326
Duefrom other governmental
units 15,589 o} o} 15,589
Due from Board of County
Commissioners 1,160 o) o) 1,160
Total Assets 82,914 243,591 150,933 477,438
Liabilities and fund balances:
Liabilities
Accounts payable and
and acrued expenses 27,987 o} o} 27,987
Due to other funds 190 o} o} 190
Due to other governmental
units 12,828 o} o} 12,828
Due to Board of County 22,158 o} o} 22,158
Deferred Revenue 19,751 o) o) 19,751
Total Liabilities 82,914 o) o) 82,914
Fund Balance
Spendable Restricted o 243,591 150,933 394,524
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances $ 82914 $ 243591 $ 150,933 $ 477,438

See accompanying notes to the basic finarst&kements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Administrative Total

General Modernization Order 86-12 Governmental
Fund Trust Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 144,882 $ 36,892 $ 0 $ 181,774
Intergovernmental revenue 454,018 0 0 454,018
Fines and forfeiture 21,300 10,787 o} 32,087
Interest and other income___ 13,500 399 265 14,164
Total revenue 633,700 48,078 265 682,043
Expenditures:
General government
Personal services 386,841 0 0 386,841
Operating expenditures 123,263 o} o} 123,263
Capital outlay 22,413 o} o} 22,413
Debt Service 2,078 o} o} 2,078
Courtrelated
Personal services 427,828 0 427,828
Operating expenditures 32,747 18,435 o} 51,182
Capital outlay o o} o} o)
Debt service 2,548 o) 0 2,548
Total expenditures 997,718 18,435 o 1,016,153
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (Under) Expenditures (364,018 29,643 265 (334,110
Other financing
sources(uses)
Transfers from Board of County
Commissioners 403,013 0 0 403,013
Transfers to Board of County
Commissioners (22,159 o} o} (22,159
Remittance to State
of Florida . (16,837 d d (16,837
Total other financing
Sources (uses) 364,018 o) o) 364,018
Net change in fund balances 0 29,643 265 29,908
Fund balances- beginning o) 213,948 150,668 364,616
Fund balance- ending $ 0 $243591 $ 150,933 $ 394,524

See accompanyingptes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL T GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
Variance with Final
Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 72,350 $ 144,042 $ 144,882 $ 840
Intergovernmental revenue 500,480 458,740 454,018 (4,722)
Fines and forfeitures 0 21,301 21,300 1
Interest and other income 34,734 14,165 13,500 (665)
Total revenues 607,564 638,248 633,700 (4,548)

Expenditures:
General Government

Personal services 422,381 408,812 386,841 21,971
Operating expenditures 95,874 123,274 123,263 11
Capital outlay 17,492 22,414 22,413 1
Debt Service 2,350 2,079 2,078 1
Courtrelated
Personal services 446,392 453,161 427,828 25,333
Operating expenditures 34,919 43,288 32,747 10,541
Capital outlay o o} o o)
Debt service 2,520 2,658 2,548 110
Total expenditures 1,021,928 1,055,686 997,718 57,968

Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (414,364 _ (417,438 (364,019 53,420

Other financing
sources (uses)

Capital lease proceeds o} o} o} o)
Transfers from Othefunds 14,426 14,426 0 (14,426)
Transferdrom Board of County
Commissioners 403,013 403,013 403,013 0
Transferdo Board of County
Commissioners o} o} (22,159 (22,159
Remittance to State of
Florida (3,075) 1) (16,837 (16,839
Total other financing
Sources (uses) 414,364 _ 417,438 364,018 (53,420
Net change in fund balances o} o} o} o}
Fund balances- beginning o) o) o) o)
Fund balances- ending $ 0o $ o $ o $ o}

See accompanying notes to the béisiancial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 1T MODERNIZATION TRUST FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
QOriginal Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Charges for services $ 28,000 $ 28,000 $ 36,892 $ 8,892
Intergovernmental revenue d o) d o)
Fines and forfeitures 10,000 10,000 10,787 787
Interest and other income 0 0 399 399
Total revenues 38,000 38,000 48,078 10,078

Expenditures:
General Government

Operating expenditures o o o} 0

Capital outlay 175,943 175,943 o} 175,943
Courtrelated

Personal services 0 0 o) o)

Operating expenditures 0 0 18,435 (18,43

Capital outlay 61,579 61,579 o) 61,57
Total expenditures 237,522 237,522 18,435 219,087

Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (199,522 _ (199,522 29,643 229,165

Other financing
sources (uses)

Transfers from Other Funds  (14,426)  (14,426) o} 14,426
Transferdrom Board of County
Commissioners o} o} o} o}
Transferdo Board of County
Commissioners o} o} o} o}
Remittance to State of
Florida o) o) o) o)
Total other financing
Sources (uses) (14,426) _ (14,426) o} 14,426
Net change in fundbalances (213,948) (213,948) 29,643 243,591
Fund balances- beginning 213,948 213,948 213,948 o)

Fund balances- ending $ 0o $ 0 $ 243591 $ 243,591

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 1 ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 86 -12 FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest and other income$ 0o $ 0o $ 265 $ 265
Total revenues o) o) 265 265
Expenditures:
Courtrelated
Personal services 20,289 20,289 o} (20,289)
Operating expenditures 0 0 o} )
Capital outlay 130,379 130,379 o 130,379
Total expenditures 150,668 150,668 o) 110,090
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (150,668 _ (150,668 265 110,355
Net change in fund balances (150,668 (150,668 265 150,933
Fund balances- beginning 150,668 150,668 150,668 o)

Fund balances- ending $ o $ o $ 150,933 $ 150,933

See accompanying notesthe basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS _
Cash and Cash E<1U|valents $ 202,373
Accounts receivable (net) 476
Duefrom other funds 67,957
Total Assets $ 270,806
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable 121
Due to individuals 130,281
Due toother governments 30,117
Due toother funds o 101,093
Due to Board oCounty Commissioners 9,194
Total Liabilities $ 270,806

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
8



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Clerk of the Circuit Court of Gulf County, Florida is an elected Constitutional Officer of
Gulf County pursuant to Article VIII, Section (1) of tlmnstitution of the State of Florida

For financial statement and reporting purposes, the Clerk is a separate constitutional officer as
provided for by Chapter 218, Florida Statutes. The Clerk is considered to be a part of the
primary government of GuCounty, Florida and the financial information is included in Gulf

Co unt y O0-widedimancialtstptements.

Thesespecigpur pose financial statements include
office. They have been prepared for thepose of complying with Section 10.55ules of

the Auditor General for Local Government Entity audirs)l are not intended to be a complete
presentation of the financial position of the County, or the changes in financial position or
where applicablesash flows, thereof, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

The Clerk funds operations as a court officer and a budget officer pursuant to Florida Statutes,
Chapters 28, 218 and 129. As a couificef, the Clerk is funded through an appropriation

from the State of Florida. These court appropriations are to be used exclusively for funding
courtrelated operations of the clerk. As a budget officer, the operations as Clerk to the

Board are appred and funded by the Board of County Commissioners. The budgeted
receipts from the Board are recorded as ot
statements and as other financing uses o0on
revenuesnd other financing sources received over expenditures are remitted to the Board at
yearend.

The accounting policies of the Clerk conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, as applicable to governments.

B. Bags of Presentationi Fund Accounting

Accounts are organized on the basis of fund types, each of which is considered to be a separat
accounting entity.The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self
balancing accounts thapmprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenueggpenditures

as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activitie
are controlled. Th€lerkutilizes the following fund types:

9



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fundi The general fund is the general operating fund of the Clerk. It is used to
account for all financial resources, excepttfarse required to be accounted for in other funds.

Modernization Trust Fundi The modernization trust fund is used to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Administrative Order 8612 Fundi This fund is used to account for additional court costs of
traffic infractions to be used for administering traffic violations.

Fiduciary Fund Type

Agency Funds The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Clerk as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Agency funds are custodial in
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of changeanniél

position.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements and relates to the timing of the measurements made,
regardless of the measurent focusapplied.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the modified accrual basis ¢
accounting for governmental funds and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognizeden they beome both measurable and available to

finance expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for principal and interest ontiermg obligationswhich is

recorded when due.

The Clek considers receivable collected within 60 days after year end to be available and

susceptible to accrual as revenues of the current year. Charges for services and interest earne
are susceptible to accrual.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CI RCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets atelfiong

liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. All governmental
funds are accounted for on a spending or 0
generally, only current assets and current liabilities are iedlidthe balance sheet.

Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
Accordingly, they present a summary of sourcesapdsus of fiavail abl e spe
during a period.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Expenditures, other than those for certain agency funds, are controlled by appropriations in
accordance with the budget requirements set forth in Florida Statutes. Budgets are adopted for
governmental and special revenue funds. Budgetary control is exercised at the fund level.
Budgetary changes within the fund are made at the discretios Gfighk. Appropriations

lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent they have not been expended. The budgeted
revenues and expenditures in the accompanying budgetary comparison statement reflect all
approved amendments.

Florida Statutes Chapt218.35 governs the preparation, adoption, and administration of the

Clerkbés annual budget. The Clerk establis
reflects the revenues available to the office and the functions for which the money is to be
expended.

The Clerk prepares the budget in three parts:

1. The budget relating to the requirements of the Clerk as the Ex Officio Clerk to the Board,
County Auditor, County Recorder, and Custodian or Treasurer of all County funds and
other county relateduties, and for chapter 29 obligations;

2. The budget relating to the Florida court system, which is filed with the Clerk of Courts
Operations Corporation (CCOC) by August 15 preceding the fiscal year of the budget, in
the format required by the CCOC. Sent28.36, Florida Statutes, defines the maximum
annual budget permitted; and

3. The budget for all other operations of the Clerk.

11



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The annual budgetary data reported for the governmental fund types are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and represent the
Cerkos adopted budget, the original approp
approved by the Clerk or as adopted by the Board.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Clerk considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased in the governmental fund type are recorded as expenditures (capital
outlay) at the time of purchase. Assets acquired by the Clerk are reported as capital assets in
the statementfaet assets as part of the basic financial statement for Gulf County. The Clerk
maintains custodial responsibility for the capital assets used by her office.

H. Liability for Compensated Absences

The Clerk accrues a | irecdivietompegsatibnofar futarengbdencgse e
when certain conditions are met. The Clerk does not, nor is legally required to, accumulate
expendable available resources to liquidate this obligation. Accordingly, the liability for the
compensated absencesot reported in the governmental fund. However, the current and
long-term portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported at the county wide
financial statement level.

. Related Organizationsi Common Expenses

Certain expenditures, whicare common to the Board and all Constitutional Officers, are
reported as expenses of the Board and, therefore, are not budgeted by or allocated to the Clerk
These expenses relating to the Clerkds cou

Occupancy costs

Jantorial services

Utilities (except telephone)
Property insurance

O¢ O« O¢ O«
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. Distribution of Excess Revenues

Florida Statues require that the Clerk distribute any excess of revenues over expenditures
within the general fund to the board within 31 days following the end of the fiscal year.
Accordingly, the amount of excess eswes distributed to the Board at the end of the year is
presented in the accompanyingspepial r pose financial statement

K. Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fundl'ype Definitions

The Clerk adopted GASB Statement No, Bdnd Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type DefinitionfGASB Statement No. 54) effective October 1, 2010. This GASB Statement
clarifies governmental fund balance classifications and-fypd definitions. Fund balances

are classified eithersanonrspendable or as spendable. Spendable fund balances are further
classified in a hierarchy based on the extent to which there are external and/or internal
constraints in how fund balance amounts may be spent.

Non-spendable fund balances includecamts that cannot be spent because they are not in
spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Spendabl e fund balances are classified bas
spending of these fdl balances and are reported in the following categories: restricted,
commi tted, assigned and unassigned. The C
and Administrative Order 862 fall into this category.

The adoption of GASB StatementNo4 di d not have an i mpact o
financial statements at September 30, 2013, since the Clerk does not maintain fund balances
in the general fund. Fund balances maintained in the modernization trust fund and
administrative86-12 fund are restricted pursuant to certain Florida Statutes and have been
presented, as restricted fund balances in the fund financial statements in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 54.

13



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make use of estimates that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenditureshduring t
reporting period. Actual results could differ from estimates.

M. Subsequent Events

The Clerk of the Court evaluated subsequent events through May 21, 2014, the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued. The Clerk of the Conatdidve any
subsequent events requiring disclosure or recording in these financial statements.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash Deposits

All Clerk depositories are banks designated by the State Treasurer as qualified public
depositories. Chapter 280, FIl orida Statut
provides procedures for public depositories to insure monies in banks and savings and loans
are collateralized with the Treasurer as an agent for the public enéitleSlerk cash consists

of checking accounts and interés&aring time deposits in a local bank.

Investments
TheClerk held no investments at September 30, 2013

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2013, the Clerk did not hold any investmeaitsviire considered to be an
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

At September 30, 2013 the Clerk did not hold any investments that were considered to be a
credit risk.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Risk

At September 30, 2013 the Clerk did not hold any deposits or investments that were considerec
to be a custodial risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk
At September 30, 2013 the Clerk did not hold any deposits or investments that were considerec

to be a credit risk.

NOTE 37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLAN

A. Plan Description

The Clerk participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), slcastg, multiple

employer defined benefit public retirement system administered by the State of Florida
Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide retirement and survivor
benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 121idd@tatutes, establishes the
authority for participant eligibility, contribution requirements, vesting eligibility and benefit
provisions. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementaryormation. The report may be obtained by writing to the State of
Florida Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg B, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399
1560.

Employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 participating in the Pension Plan who retiretat or af

age 62 with 6 years of credited service for regular risk or with 30 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for celedted officials of their final

average compensation for each year of credited service; and for special risk, after age 55 with ¢
years or with 25 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life, up to % for each year of credited service times their final average
compensation. Final average compensation
of salary earned during credited service. Vested employees may retire before age 62 for
regular rsk and 55 for special risk, and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for

each year prior to normal retirement age.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 317 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Employees hired on July 1, 2011 or later participating in the Pension Plan who retire at or after
age 65 with 8 years of credited service for regular risk or with 33 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for county elected officials of their final
average compensation for each year of credited service; and éoal sk, after age 60 with 8
years or with 30 years of service and age 57 or after 30 years of special risk service regardless
of age, or after 33 years of any creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life. Vestedmployees may retire before age 65 for regular risk and 60 for special
risk and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for each year prior to normal
retirement age.

FRS also provides death and disability benefits andafdsting adjustmerg. Generally,
membership is compulsory for all fitlime and partime employees.

B. Funding Policy

The funding method and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of
the Florida LegislatureEmployees are required to contribute 3% of their earnings except for
those in DROP.Therates, as a percentage of gross earnings, are as follows:

10/1/2a.2 7/1/2018

through through

6/30/208 9/30/208
Regular employees 5.18% 6.99%
Senior management 6.30% 18.3%%
Elected county officials 10.22% 33.030
DROP program participants 5.4%% 12.8%%

Chapter 121 Florida Statutes establishes the authority for particlgabiliey, contribution
requirements, vesting eligibility and benefit provisions. For the period October 1, 2012 through
September 30, 2013 the total payroll for all employees was $651,776 and the retirement
contributions f or theSystem fopthe gearecedediSeptember30,20lL3 b
2012 and 2011 were $49,929, $26,489 and $70,954 respectively, which is equal to the requirec
contribution for each year. Current year contributions represented 7.66% of covered payroll.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 317 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

In accordance with Florida Statutes Section 112.0801, #wk @articipates with Gulf

County in offering retiring employees the opportunity to continue participating in the group
insurance plan. Retirees who do not choose to continue participation lose eligibility to
participate in the future.

Retirees antheir eligible dependents shall be offered the same health and hospitalization
insurance coverage as is offered to active employees at a premium cost of no more than the
premium cost applicable to active employees. The County subsidizes the premiymicates

by the retirees by allowing them to participate in the plan at blended group (implicitly
subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates provide an
implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, theintane future claims are
expected to result in higher costs to the plan on average than those of active employees. No
stand alone report is issued for this plan.

The details of the plan, methodology, and costs are more fully described in the Gulf County
Notes to the Financial Statements.

NOTE 4717 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivable and payable at September 30, 2013 are as follows:
Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds

Governmental funds

General fund $ 33,326 $ 190
Modernization trust fund o} o}
Agency funds
Article V trust 190 84,169
Fee trust o} 9,354
Jury and witess o} 1,501
Registry of Court 67,767 4,231
Child support o) 1,838
Total $ 101,283 $ 101,283
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 51 CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS

As disclosed in note 1, the liability associated with compensated absences is reported on the
county wide financial statement level. The following is a summary of the changes-i@tong
obligations of the Clerk for the year ended September 30, 2013.

Balance Balance
9/302012 Increases Decreases  9/30/208B

Accumulated compensated
absences $ 22,517 $ 103 $ 0o $ 22620

The current portion of compensated absences liability estimated to be paid during the next year is
$5,655.

NOTE 61 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Clerk is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destfuctio
assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or damage to property of others.
The Clerk participates in the risk management program through the Gulf County Board of County
Commissioners, which uses commercial insurance to @evigin risks from loss.

The Board obtained commercial insurance against losses for the following types of risk:

Real and personal property damage
Public employeebs bond
Wor kersdéd compensation
General and automobile liability

O« O¢ O¢ O«

NOTE 77 ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.
They do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. The commitments will be honored in the

subsequent year for those that expire at year end. [Ehnle ltad no outstanding encumbrances at
September 30, 2013.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 81 CAPITAL LEASE

The Clerk leases copiers under a leg@ring November 2016 which meets the criteria for
capitalization. The lease is financed from General Fund resources.

The estimated value of the leased copiers at the inception of the lease amounted to $18,570. The
related present value of the remamwbligation under the capital lease which amounted to
$12,164 at September 30, 2013.

As noted in note 1, the liability associated with the capital lease is reported on the county wide
financial statement level.

The future minimum obligations under tbapital lease at September 30, 2013 is as follows:

Year ending

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 3,497 $ 894 $ 4,391
2015 3,804 587 4,391
2016 4,138 253 4,391
2017 725 8 733
Totals $ 12,164 $ 1,742 $ 13,906
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
COMBININ G STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AGENCY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Total
Article V Jury & Registry of  Child Agency
Fee Trust __ Trust Witness Court Support Bond Funds

Assets:
Cash and cash

equivalents $ 21,681 $ 114,356 $ 4,223 $ 35449 $ 2,164 $ 24500 $ 202,373
Accounts

receivable (net) 476 o} o} o} o} o} 476
Due from other funds o] 190 o] 67,767 o] o} 67,957
Due from Board

Of County

Commissioners o] o] o] o] o] o) o)
Total assets 22,157 114,546 4,223 103,216 2,164 24,500 270,806
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 111 10 o} o} o} o} 121
Due to individuals 4,080 2,716 o] 98,985 o] 24,500 130,281
Due to other

governments 6,406 20,663 2,722 o} 326 o} 30,117
Due to other funds 9,354 84,169 1,501 4,231 1,838 o} 101,093
Due to Board of County

Commissioners 2,206 6,988 o) o) o) o) 9,194
Total Liabilities $ 22,157 $ 114546 $ 4,223 $ 103216 $ 2,164 $ 24500 $ 270,806
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORGOS MANAGEMENT LETT

To theHonorable Rebecca L. Norris
Gulf County Clerk of the Circuit Court
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited the specjalrpose financial statements of the Gulf County, Florida, Clerk of the
Circuit Court as of and for the fiscal year ended September 28, 26d have issued our report
thereon dated May 21, 2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards, and
the standards applicable to financial audits contain€biwernment Auditing Standardssued iy the
Comptroll er General of the United States. We
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters. Disclosures in that
report, which is dated May 21, 2014 should be considarednjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 1(Raf€s of the Auditor
General,which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This legr includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned

A

auditorbés report.

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findingseeaothmendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. There were no findings or recommendations in the preceding annual
financial audit report.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a rethew of
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Clerk of the Circuit Court complied with Section
218.415, Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rulesd the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management

letter any findings and recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our
audit, we did not have any such recommendations.
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Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of tAaiditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions

of contracts, grant agreements, or abuse, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less th
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, wetdidv®any such

findings.

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
the management lettarmless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Clerk of the
Circuit Court was established by the Constitution of the State of Florida, Article VIII, Section 1(d).
The Clerk of the Circuit Court has no component units.

Our management lett is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida

Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, and applicable managensenbamdended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888)531-6408% Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORGOS REPORT ON |I NTERNAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF SPECIAL -PURPOSE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STAN DARDS

To the Honorable Rebecca L. Norris
Gulf County Clerk of the Circuit Court
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States o
America and the standards applicable to financial statements contatBedémment Auditing
Standardsssued by the Comptroller General of the Unitesté&¥, the fund financial statements of

each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information &futi€County, Florida Clerk of

Court(t he AClerko), as of and for the year endec
Cl er k 6 s ncialstatemeritsiandéhave issued our report thereon dated May 21, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

I n planning and performing our audit of the f
control over financial reporting (inteshcontrol) to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial

statements, but not for the purpose of expres
control . Accordingly, we do not express an op
control.

A deficiency in internal contragxists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course ofrparfg their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basimat&rial weaknesis a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
materialmissit e ment of the entitybés financial stater
corrected on a timely basis. significant deficiencys a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,

in internal control that is less severe than a material weakyetsmportant enough to merit attention

by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internabttrdt might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist thetve not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonabl e assurance abo
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
reguations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective ofwalit and, accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported u@®rernment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of thiseport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Clerkdés internal control or o nfaraudipdformedine . T
accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardsn consi dering the entity
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Voree CR2 LCC

Vance CPA LLC
May 21,2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSOG REPORT

To the Honorable Mike Harrison
Gulf County Sheriff
Gulf County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying fund financial statements of each major fund and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the C
and for the yeaended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which <collectively comprise the Sheriffds fu
contents.

Management 6s Responsibility for the Financi al

Management is sponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contewhntlto the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

|l ndependent Auditorés Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statemesgd ba our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contaiGa/ennment
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller Genked the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidemmtathe amounts and

di sclosures i n the financi al statement s. T
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In makimasd risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contr ol relevant to the en
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose ofepr essing an opinion on the effectiyv
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accountiragesstimade by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financiadtatements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the funds of the Sheriff as of September 30, 2013, and the respective
changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the gamérfak fu

the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the Gulf County,
Florida Sheriff anddo not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of Gulf
County, Florida as of September 30, 2013, and the changes in its financial position for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in itex (Biates of
America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlsovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report datéaly

21, 2014 on our consideration of oringpand &lowr i f f o6
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over financial reporting andmpliance and the results of that testing, and not

to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance @ithernment Auditing Standards
consideringSher i ffos internal contr ol over financi a

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SHERIFF

SPECIAL-PURPOSE BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2013

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Board of County Commissioners
Duefrom other Government
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to Board of County Commissioners
Total Liabil ities

Fund Balances
Restricted For:
Public Safety
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Nonmajor-Fund Total

General Special Governmental
Fund Revenue Funds
$ 178,729 $ 18,215 $ 196,944
1,220 o) 1,220
9,581 o) 9,581

189,530 18,215 207,745

188,639 0 188,639
891 0 891
189,530 0 189,530
0 18,215 18,215

0 18,215 18,215

$ 189,530 $ 18,215 $ 207,745

See accompanyingptes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SHERIFF

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Nonmajor-Fund Total
General Special Governmental
Fund Revenue Funds
REVENUES _
Charges for services $ 181,000 $ 0 $ 181,000
Intergovernmental revenue 33,753 o) 33,753
Interest and other miscellaneous income 34,498 0 34,498
Total Revenues 249,251 o} 249,251
EXPENDITURES
Public Safety
Personal services 1,894,553 ) 1,894,553
Operating expenditures 392,886 7,500 400,386
Capital outlay 88,865 o) 88,865
Debt Service 10,551 o) 10,551
Total Expenditures 2,386855 7,500 2,394,355
Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under) expenditure&,137,604 (7,500 (2,145,104
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from Bard of County Commissioners 2,154,355 o) 2,154,355
Transfers in from other funds o 4,140 20,000 24,140
Transfers taoard of County Commissioners (891) o} (891)
Transfers out to other funds (20,000 0 (20,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 2,137,604 20,000 2,157,604
Net change in fund balances o} 12,500 12,50
Fund balances- beginning o 5,715 5,715
Fund balances- ending $ o $ 18215 $ 18,215

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SHERIFF

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL T GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 181,000 $ 181,000 $ 181,000 $ 0
Intergovernmental revenue 20,470 33,753 33,573 o)
Interest and other income o] 34,498 34,498 o]
Total revenues 201,470 249,251 249,251 f6)
Expenditures:
Public Safety
Personal services 1,975,428 1,976,701 1,894,553 82,148
Operating expenditures 384,823 402,980 392,886 10,094
Capital outlay 3,500 28,065 88,865 €60,800;
Debt service o] o] 10,551 10,551
Total expenditures 2,363,751 2,407,746 2,386,855 20,891

Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,162,28) (2,158,49% (2,137,604 (20,891)

Other financing

sources (uses)
Transfers fronBoard of County

Commissioners 2,162,281 2,154,355 2,154,355 0
Transferdn from other funds 0 4,140 4,140 0
Transfers out to other funds o} o} (20,000) (20,000)
Transfers to Board of

County Commissioners o} o} (891) (891)
Total otherfinancing
Sources (uses) 2,162,281 2,158,495 2,137,604 (20,892
Net change in fund balance$ o $ o $ o $ d

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
SHERIFF

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Individual
Depository
ASSETS _
Cash and Cash E<1U|valents $ 430
Accounts receivable (net) 3,966
Total Assets $ 4,396
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Due to individuals 430
Due toOther Funds 3,966
Total Liabilities $ 4,396

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Sheriff of Gulf County, Florida is an elected Constitutional Officer of Gulf County
pursuant to Article VIII, Section (1) of tHeonstitution of the State of Floridd:or financial
statement anteporting purposes, the Sheiigfa separate constitutional officer as provided for
by Chapter 218, Florida Statutes. The Sheriff is considered #opart of the primary

government of Gulf County, Florida afitk financid information is included in Gulf
Countybds county wide financial statements.

These specigburpose financial statements include only the balances and activity of the
Sheri ff 6s webten prepared fol thegoyrposeaf complying with SecOdsbZ,
Rules of the Auditor General for Local Government Entity Aualitd,are not intended to be a
complete presentation of the financial position of the County, or the changes in financial
position or where applicable, cash flows, thereof, in contgrmith accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Gulf County Board of County Commissioners (Board) funds a portion or, in certain
instances, all of the operating bptdgets of
obligations specified under Florida Statutes Chapter 29. The payments by the Board to fund
the operations of the Constitutional Officers are recorded as transfers out on the financial
statements of the Board and as transfers from the Board ondineiél statements of the
Constitutional Officers. Repayments to the Board are recorded as transfers out on the financial
statements of the Constitutional Officers and as transfers in on the financial statements of the
Board.

The accounting policiesf the Sheriff conform to accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States dfmerica, as applicable to governments.

B. Basis of Presentatiori Fund Accounting

Accounts are organized on the basis of fund types, each of which is consideseiseparate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenegpamitures

as appropriate. Government resources areatka to and accounted for in individual funds

based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activitie
are controlled. The Sheriff utilizes the following fund types:



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fundi The general fund is the general operating fund of the Sheriff. It is used to
account forall financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legaltyeedtri
expenditures for specified purposes. The Shexgbrtsthe following special revenue funds

in the financi al bdnadgogFondnot s under the tit]

Forfeiture Fund - Used toaccount for revenues and expenditures relating to various
forfeitures.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Agency Funds The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Sheriff as an
agent for individualsprivate organizations, and other governments. Agency funds are
custodial in nature and do not involeasurement of changes in financial position.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements and relates to the timing of the measurements made,
regardless of the measurement foepgplied.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the modified accrual basis ¢
accounting for governmental funds and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenueserecognizedvhen they become both measurable and available to

finance expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for principal and interest ontiermg obligationswhich is

recorded when due.

The Sheriff considers receivables collected within 60 days after year end to be available and
susceptible to accruas revenues in the current year. Charges for services and interest are
susceptible to accrual.



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets atelfiong

liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. This means that
generally, only current assets and current liabilities are includibe inalance sheet.

Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
Accordingly, they present a summary of sourcesandudesof ai | abl e spendab
during a period.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Florida Statutes Chapter 30.49 governs the preparation, adoption, and administration of the
Sheri ffdéds annual budget. Ex pefudds,arer es, ot
controlled by appropriations in accordance with the budget requirements set forth in Florida
Statutes. Budgets are adopted for governmental and special revenue funds. Budgetary contro
is exercised at the fund level. Budgetary changesmiitie fund are made at the discretion of

the Sheriff. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent they have not been
expended.

The annual budgetary data reported for governmental fund types are adopted on a basis
consistent wittaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
represent t he Sh e rohigindl agrop@atoo grdinante, dnd wugdgett , t h
amendments approved by the Sheriff or as adopted by the Board.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalats

The Sheriff considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less to be cashquivalents.

G. Capital Assets

The Sheriff is accountable for maintaining capital asset records pertaining to machinery and
equipmenused in hioperations. The Board holds legal title for real property used by the
Sheriff and is therefore accountable for such assets under Florida Law.



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30,2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Capital assets purchased in the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures (capital
outlay) at the timef purchase. Assets acquired by the Sheriff are reported aal egsiets in

the statement of net assets as part of the basic financial statement for Gulf County. Donated
and confiscated capital assets are recorde
at the date of receipt. Capital assets areetdgited using the straighbhe method of

depreciation over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally 5 to 7 years.
Depreciation expense is recorded in the statement of activities in the govemiaent

financial statements of tH@ounty.

H. Liability for Compensated Absences

The Sheriff accrues a |iability for empl oy
absences when certain conditions are met. The Sheriff does not, nor is he legally required to,
accumulate expendalderailable resources liquidate this obligation. Accordingly the

liability for the compensated absences is not reported in the governmental funds. However, the
current and longerm portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported at the

county wide financial statement level.

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management

to make use of estimates that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of cortingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amount of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from estimates.

J. Related Organizationsi Common Expenses

Certain ependitures, which are common to the Board and all Constitutional Officers, are
reported as expenses of the Board and, therefore, are not budgeted by or allocated to the
Sheri ff. These expenses relating to the S

Ocaupancy costs

Janitorial services

Utilities (except telephone)
Property insurance
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

K. Subsequent Events

The Sheriff evaluated subsequent events through May 21, 2014, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued. The Sheriff did not have any subsequent events
requiring disclosure or recording in these financiaiesteents.

L. Fund Balance

GASB Statement 5% Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Funds Type Definitvass
implemented as of October 1, 2009. This Statement requires the fund balance for
governmental funds to be reported in classifications that cemprhierarchy based primarily

on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes
for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Categories for fund balance are as follows:
nonspendable, restricted, committedjgrssd, and unassigned. For more information, see the
Countywide note on fund balance.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

All Sheriff depositories are banks designated by the State Treasurer as qualified public
depositories. Chapter 280, Florida Statiiteds| or i da Security for Put
provides procedures for public depositories to insure monies in banks and savings and loans
are collateralized with the Treasurer as an agent for the public entities. All Sheriff cash
consists of checking acaots and interedtearing time deposits in a local bank.

The Sheriff held no investments@¢ptember 30, 2013

Interest Rate Risk
At September 30, the Sheriff did not hold any investments that were considered to be an
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk
At September 30, the Sheriff did not hold any investments that were considered to be a credit
risk.

Custodial Risk
At September 30, the Sheriff did not hold any deposits or investment that was considered to be
a custodial risk.

11



GULF COUNTY , FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS i (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk
At September 30, 201&e Sheriff did not hold any investments that were considered to be a
concentration of credit risk.

NOTE 31 CAPITAL ASSETS

The Sheriff maintains recordkeeping and custodial responsibility for certain tangible capital
assets used by his office. These spgmimpose financial statements do not include capital
assetand the related depreciation in the governmental fund financial statements. The

foll owing information i s report ewidefinancial c om
statements.

Balance Balance
9/30/2A.2 Increases Decreases 9/30/20L3

Vehicles, equipment and furnitue 1,009,595 $ 88,865 $ (69,054) $ 1,029,406

Accumulated depreciation (712,167 _ (143,792 71,728 (784,230
Total $ 297428 $ (54.926)$ 2674 $ 245,176

Depreciatim expense for the year endgdptember 30, 2028as $43,791computed on the
straightline method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally 3 to 7
years.

12



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 417 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLAN

A. Plan Description

In accordance with Florida Law, the Sheriff participates in the Florida Retirement System
(FRS), a multipleemployer cost sharing defined benefibpa retirement system administered

by the State of Florida Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide
retirement and survivor benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 121, Florida
Statutes establishes the authority fortipgoant eligibility, contribution requirements, vesting
eligibility and benefit provisions. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by
contac¢ing the State of Florida Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd, Bldg B,
Tallahassee, Florida, 3239%60.

The system provides vesting benefits after six years of creditable service. Members are
eligible for normal retirement after six years of segvand attaining age 62, or 30 years of
service regardless of age. Vested employees may retire before age 62 for regular risk and 55
for special risk; however, there is a 5% benefit reduction for each year prior to normal
retirement. FRS also providesath and disability benefits and cadtliving adjustments.
Generally, membership is compulsory for all ftithe and partime employees. As of

7/1/2011 Employees contribute 3% of their earnings to their retirement.

B. Funding Policy

The funding methodand the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of
the Florida Legislature. The acts provide that employers pay all contributions at rates
determined each year by the legislature. The rates, as a percentage of gross earsings are a

follows:

Employer Employee

10/1/2@.2 7/1/201 7/1/2012

through through through
6/30/208 9/30/208 9/30/208

Regular employees 5.18% 6.9%% 3.00%
Elected County officials 6.30% 33.03% 3.00%
Special risk emipyees 14.90% 19.08% 3.00%
DROP plan participants 5.4%% 12.8%% 0.00%
Uneligible Special Risk 3.86% 8.0 0.00%

13



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 41 Employee Benefits (continued)

For the period October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013, the total payroll for all covered
employees was $1,492,705 and the emplogirement contributions for all employees

covered by FRS for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $177,579,
$164,424, and $252,250 respectively, which is equal to the required contributions for each
year. For 2013 these contributionpnesented 11.89% of covered payroll.

NOTE 517 CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS

Balance Balance
Installment contract 9/30/2A2 Additions Deductions _9/30/20B
Installment purchase agreement for
vehicle, payable in monthly
installmentsof $506including
interest ab% maturing in
December 2014 8,884 o) (8,889 0
Total installment contracts 8,884 o} (8,889 o
Accrued compensated absences 138,118 _ 203,818 _ (216,429 125,507
Total long-term debt $ 147,002 $ 203,818 $ (225,313 $ 125,507
Accrued compensated absences represent the vested portion of accrued vacation, sicidleave,
compensated ti me. See note 1 for a summary

absences.

NOTE 61 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS

The Sheriff has an interlocal agreement with the City of Wewahitchka, whereby personnel from
the Gulf County Sherif 6 s of fi ce provide | aw enforcement
consideration the Board of County Commission receives paymend3 @®annually from the
City which is used by the Board to fund the

The Gulf County Sériff has a service agreement with the City of Port St. Joe Police Department,
hereby the Gulf County Sheriff provides all dispatching services required within the City of Port
St. Joe. The City of Port St. Joe pays the Gulf County Sheriff the sum 8D8p&r quarter, in
consideration of these services. The Sheeifkived $6,000for the year ende8eptember 30,

2013
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 61 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS i (continued)

The Sheriff has an interlocal agreement with@uf County School BoarDistrict), whereby the
Sheriff provides School Resource Officers to the district. As consideration the Sheriff receives
payments of $8,750per quarter from the District. The Sheriff receivdd $,000for the year
endedSeptember 30, 2013

NOTE 717 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Sheriff participates in the Florida Sheriff Sielurance Fund, which is considered a public

entity risk poolwhicpur chases insurance policies on beh
are not obligated for risk associated with such coverage. Coverage under these programs include;
general liability, public employees blanket bond, automobiles and money andissaaverage.

The Sheriff provides for workersd compensat.i
commercial insurance policy through the Board. Premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cos:
toidate of the Sheriffds. experience for this

The Sheriff has determined that is was not economically justifiable to carry comprehensive
coverage on all vehicles. The Sheriff evaluates vehicles by age and condition to determine if
comprehensive coverage is feasible, otherwise the Sheriff caabdsy insurance on the
aforementioned vehicles.

In addition, the Sheriff participates in the Florida Seffurance Fund for risks related to

professional liabilityandp u bl i ¢ of fi ci al sdé coverage. The
liability fund will be selfsustaining through member premiums and that it will reinsure through
commercial companies. Aggregate coverage provided by the liability fusg0Oi@G500Cfor

professional liability and®$000,000 or publ i c of ficial sd coverag

NOTE 817 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

In accordance with Florida Statutes Section 112.0801, the Sheriff participates with Gulf County in
offering retiring employees the opportunity to continue participating in the group insurance plan.
Retirees wb do not choose to continue participation lose eligibility to participate in the future.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 81 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 1 (continued)

Retirees and their eligible dependents shall be offered the same health and hospitalization
insurance coverage as is offered to active employees at a premium cost of no more than the
premium cost applicable to active employees. The Cautigidizes the premium rates paid by

the retirees by allowing them to participate in the plan at blended group (implicitly subsidized)
premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates provide an implicit subsidy for
retirees because, on aatuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to result in

higher costs to the plan on average than those of active employees. No stand alone report is issue
for this plan.

The details of the plan, methodology, and costs are moredkesigribed in the Gulf County Notes
to the Financial Statements.

NOTE 917 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation i From time to time, the Sheriff is involved as a defendant or plaintiff in certain

litigation and claims arising from the ordinary course of operations. It is reasonably possible that
the liability for known and unknown claims existing at the balaneetstiate may be material.
However, the responsibility for such c¢l ai ms
Accordingly, no contingent liabilities have been accrued in the accompanying financial statements.

Grantsi The Sheriff is the recipiemf grants that are subject to special compliance requirements
and audits by the grantor agencies that may result in disallowed expense amount. These amounts
constitute a contingent liability of the Sheriff. The Sheriff does not believe any contingent
liabilities, if any, to be material to the financial statements.
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S MANAGEMENT LETT

To the Honorable Mike Harrison
Gulf County Sheriff
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited the speclrpose financial statements of the Gldfunty, Florida, Sheriff as of
and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated May 21,
2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards, and
the standards appéble to financial audits contained@overnment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller Gener al of the United States. We
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Mdbisidosures in that

report, which is dated May 21, 2014 should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 1(Raf€s of the Auditor
General,which governs the conduct aidal governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the aforementioned
auditordos report.

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General requires that we de&ewhether or not

corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to the extent considered necessary,
other than for those comments repeatetthe Report on Internal Control over financial reporting and

on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance witlGovernment Auditing Standards.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor Generalumas our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Sheriff complied with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes.

Section 10654(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any findings and recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our
audit, we did not have any such recommendations.
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Section 10.554(1)(4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions
of contracts, grant agreements, or abuse, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less th
material but more than inconsequential. In connection witlaodit, we did not have any such

findings.

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Sheriff was
established by the Constitution of the State of Florida, Article VIII, Section 1(d). The Sheriff has no
component units.

Our management letter is intended sofelythe information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representative, the Florida

Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, and applicable management and is not intende
to beand should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S REPORT ON | NTERNAL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mikélarrison
Gulf County Sheriff
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States o
America and the standards applicable to financial statements contaiBedamment Auditing

Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fund financial statements of the
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information a&tiieCounty, Florida Sheriff (the
ASheri ffo), as of and for thecglkheceindeldy Se p |
fund financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 21, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Il n planning and performing our audit dnternalhe f
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressingamopinion t he effectivenes.
internal control. Accordingly, we do not exp
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the precedgrguar

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weakensses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as dabed in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses,

we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal contraéxists when the design or operation of a control does net allo
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, ot
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basiwata@rial weaknesis a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such thare is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entityods financi
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of

findings and esponses to be material weaknesses-01® 1303).
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonabl e assurance abo
material misstatement, we performed tests of its complianceceiithin provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisie was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported u@®rernment Auditing Standards.

Response td-indings

The Sheriffdods response to the findings identi
schedule of findings and responses. The Sher
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statésnemd, accordingly, we express non opinion

on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Sheri ffds i nternal c ontigaa integoalparbohan audinppriormednnc e .
accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardsn consi dering the entity
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Voree CR2 LCC

Vance CPALLC
May 21, 2014
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - SHERIFF
FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

13-01 (Prior year 101 and 1101) Lackof Segregation of dutiésSeparation of certain accounting

and administrative duties among employees, which is recommended as an effective internal control
procedure, was not adequate. The limited number of employees precludes proper segregatesn of duti
in the Sheriffdés office. We recommend that i
that mitigating procedures including additional oversight with regard to certain duties be performed
regularly to reduce the risks caused by thi& laicsegregation of duties.

Management DBue to theslimited umber of employees, it is virtually impossible to
maintain complete separation of accounting and administrative duties among employees. However,
every effort is being made to accoispl effective internal procedures.

13-02 (Prior year 1202) Significant adjustments to the financial records were made in order for the
financial statements to conform to generally accepted accounting principles.

Ma nage me nt DWe reakzes thaimeaky eur internal control system should be designed in a
manner that ensures the accuracy of the financial statements and that the Auditors should not have to
recommend journal entries to see that they conform to generally accepted accounting priviégples

do not feel that in the near future the benefits derived from investing in the resources necessary for us
to implement an effective internal control system would outweigh the cost of those resources.

13-03 (Prior year 1203) Inadequate design ofternal control over the preparation of the financial
statements being audited.

Ma n age me nt DGurAuditsrpassmsisus with the preparation of our financial statements. We
do not feel that in the near future the benefits derived from investihg iresources necessary for us
to prepare our own financial statements would outweigh the cost of those resources.

The She
f

ffos responses to the findings ident
Sherif I

roi
0s r es pyweserpsessamaopinian orcttiem.d i n g
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSOG REPORT

To the Honorable Shirley J. Jenkins
Gulf County Tax Collector
Gulf County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying fund financial statements of each major fund and the

agregate remaining fund information of t he G
Coll ectoro), as of and for the year ended Se
financi al statement s, whi ch col | ahcd statemdntg c o mp

as listed in the table of contents.

Management 6s Responsibility for the Financi al
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles gafigraccepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due téraud or error.

|l ndependent Auditorés Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Ameda and the standards applicable to financial audits contain€@bwernment
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about twaether
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

di sclosures i n the financi al statement s. T
judgment, includig the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal contr ol rel evant fihaociat he en
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aatsb includes evaluating the appropriateness

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audivielence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the funds of the Tax Collecés of September 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the general
fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the Gulf County,
Florida Tax Collector and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
Gulf County, Florida as of September 2013, and the changes in its financial position for the
year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlsovernmen®Auditing Standardswe have also issued our report datéaly

21, 2014 on our consideration of the Tax Coll
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gran
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not

to provide an opinion on internal control over finahceporting or on compliance. That report

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance @ithernment Auditing Standards
considering Tax Collectords internal control

Voree CR2 LCC

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
TAX COLLECTOR

SPECIAL-PURPOSE BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 191
Total Assets 191
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Deferred Revenue 191
Total Liabilities 191
Fund Balances )
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 191

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
TAX COLLECTOR

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

General
Fund
REVENUES
Interest and other income $ 724
Total Revenues 724
EXPENDITURES
General government
Personal services 362,408
Operating expenditures 93.408
Total Expenditures 455,816

Excess (deficit) of revenues oy@nder) expenditures _ (455,092

Other financing sources (fuses)

Transfers from Board of County Commissioners 458,492
Transferdo Board of County Commissioners (3,400)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 455,092
Net change in fundbalances o)
Fund balances- beginning o)
Fund balances- ending $ o)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
4



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
TAX COLLECTOR

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL T GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest and other income o} 724 724 o)
Total revenues $ 0o $ 724 $ 724 $ 0
Expenditures:
General Government
Personal services 333,064 362,408 362,408 0
Operating expenditures__ 103,390 93.408 93.408 o)
Total expenditures 436,454 _ 455,816 455,816 o)
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (436,454 _ (455,092 (455,092 o)

Other financing

sources (uses)
Transfers from Board of County

Commissioners 436,454 458,492 458,492 0
Transferdo Board of County

Commissioners o) (3,400) (3,400) o)

Total other financing

Sources (uses) 436,454 _ 455,092 455,092 o)

Net change in fund balances o} o} o} o}

Fund balances- beginning o) o) o) o)

Fund balances- ending $ o $ o 3 0o $ o)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
5



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
TAX COLLECTOR

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

ASSETS _
Cash and Cashquivalents $ 226,846
Total Assets $ 226,846
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable 4,891
Due to individuals 187,105
Due to other governments o 15,653
Due to Board of County Commissioners 19,197
Total Liabilities $ 226,846

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
6



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Tax Collector of Gulf County, Florida is an elected Constitutional Officégolf County
pursuant to Article VI, Section (1) of ti@onstitution of the State of FlorideFor financial
statement and repamg purposes, the Tax Collector is a separate constitutional officer as
provided for by Chapter 218, Florida Statutes. The Tax Collector is considered to be a part of
the primary government of Gulf County, Florida and the financial information is iedlud

i n Gul f Co-widetfiyadcsal satements. y

These specigburpose financial statements include only the balance and activity of the Tax
Coll ectords office. They have been prepar
10.557,Rules ofhe Auditor General for Local Government Entity audatsd are not

intended to be a complete presentation of the financial position of the County, or the

changes in financial position or where applicable, cash flows, thereof, in conformity with
accountng principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The operations of the Tax Collector are funded by the Gulf County Board of County
Commissioners (Board). The receipts from the Board are recorded as other financing sources
ontheTax@©@ 1l | ect or 6s financial statements and a
statements. Any excess of revenue and other financial sources received over expenditures are
remitted to the Board at year end. These excess fees are reporteditityaha as transfers

out to the Board or deducted from fees earned for amounts distributed to other governments.

The accounting policies of the Tax Collector conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, adiegdge to governments.

B. Basis of Presentatiori Fund Accounting

Accounts are organized on the basis of fund types, each of which is considered to be a separat
accounting entity.The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate dét of se
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenegpamitures

as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based on the purpose for which they are to be spent amdgns by which spending activities

are controlled. Th&ax Collectorutilizes the following fund types:



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fundi The general fund is the general operating fund of the Tax Collector. It is used
to account for all financial resources, except for those required to be accounted for in other
funds.

Fiduciary Fund Type

Agency Funds The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Tax Collector as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. Agency funds are
custodial in nature and do not involve meamert of changes in financial position.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements and relates to the timing of the measurements made,
regardess of the measurement focagplied.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the modified accrual basis c
accounting for governmental funds and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognizeden they become both measurable and available to

finance expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for principal and interest ontiermg oldigations which is

recorded when due.

The Tax Collector considers receivable collected within 60 days after year end to be available
and susceptible to accrual as revenues of the current year. Charges for services and interest
earnedare susceptilelto accrual.

D. Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets atetfiong

liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus. All governmental
funds are accounted foronaspemdg or Afi nancial fl ow0 meas
generally, only current assets and current liabilities are included in the balance sheet.
Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and deeases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.
Accordingly, they present a summary of sou
during a period.



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Budgetary Requirements

Florida Statutes, Chapter 195.087 govern the preparation, adoption and administration of the
annual budget of the Tax Collectorhe budget and subsequent budget amendments of the
Tax Collector are submitted to the Florida Department of Revenue (FDOR) for approval. A
copy of the budget is also provided to the Board.

Line item expenditures in excess of budget are authorizée textent that total expenditures

do not exceed the total budgeted expenditures. Budget transfers between appropriation
categories (personal services, operating expenditures, capital outlay, and debt service) must be
approved by FDOR. Transfers betweasxpenditure items within the same appropriation

category do not need approval by FDOR. The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basi:
of accounting. General fund appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent they
have not ben expended.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased in the governmental fund type in excess of $1,000 are recorded as
expenditures (capital outlay) at the time of purchase. Capital assets acquired are reported as
capital assets in the statement of net assets as part of the basic financial statement for Gulf
County. The Tax Collector maintains custodial responsibility for the capital assets used by the
office.

The Tax Collector also utilizes certain computasipment and software for vehicle and boat
registrations and driverdés | icense process
of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles (DMV) and software licensed to the State of Florida
Fish and Wildlife Conservain Commission (FFWCC). The cost of this equipment is not
recognized in the statement of net assets of the County because ownership of the equipment
and software is maintained by the DMV and FFWCC.

G. Liability for Compensated Absences

The TaxCollectoaccrues a |l iability for employeesbd
absences when certain conditions are met. The Tax Collector does not, nor is legally required
to, accumulate expendable available resources to liquidate this obligation.diAgbgrthe

liability for the compensated absences is not reported in the governmental fund. However, the
current and longerm portion of the liability for compensated absences is reported at the
county wide financial statement level.



GULF COUNTY , FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

H. Related Organizationsi Common Expenses

Certain expenditures, which are common to the Boaddadl Constitutional Officers, are
reported as expenses of the Board and, therefore, are not budgeted by or allocated to the Tax

Coll ector. These expenses relating to the
0 Occupancy costs

o] Janitorial serices

0 Utilities (except telephone)

0 Property insurance

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make use of estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liallitisslasure

of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amount of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from estimates.

Chapter 197, Florida Statutegverns property tax collections.

y Current Taxes
All property taxes become due and payable on November 1, and are delinquent on
April 1 of the following year. Discounts of 4%, 3%, 2% and 1% are allowed for early
payment in November throudgtebruary, respectively.

y Unpaid Taxesi Sale of Tax Certificates
The Tax Collector advertises, as required by Florida Statutes, then sells tax certificates
on all real property for unpaid taxes. Certificates not purchased are issued to the
County. Any person owning real property upon which a tax certificate has been sold
may reacquire the real property by paying the Tax Collector the face amount of the tax
certificate plus interest and other costs.

10



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

y Tax Deeds
The owner of a tax certificate may, after two years when the taxes have been delinquent
(after April 1), file an application for tax deed sale. The County, as certificate owner,
may exercise similar procedures two years after taxes have been delinquent (after April
1). Tax deeds are issued to the highest bidder for the property, whidth & pablic
auction. The Tax Collector of the Court administers these sales.

J. Subsequent Events

The Tax Collector evaluated subsequent events through May 21, 2014, the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued. The Tax Colkdtoot have any
subsequent events requiring disclosure or recording in these financial statements.

K. Net Assets and Fund Equity

GASB Statement 5% Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Funds Type Definitiass
implemented as of October 1, 2009This Statement requires the fund balance for
governmental funds to be reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes
for which amounts in thse funds can be spent. Categories for fund balance are as follows:
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. For more information, see tr
Countywide note on fund balance.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

All Tax Collector deposdries are banks designated by the State Treasurer as qualified public
depositories. Chapter 280, FIl orida Statut
provides procedures for public depositories to insure monies in banks and savings and loans
arecollateralized with the Treasurer as an agent for the public entities. All Tax Collector cash
consists of checking accounts and intelesdring time deposits in a local bank.

Investments
TheTax Collector held no investments at September 30,.2013

11



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2013, the Tax Collector did not hold any investmentsdratonsidered to
be an interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

At September 30, 2013 the Tax Collector did not hold any investments that were considered to
be a credit risk.

Custodial Risk

At September 30, 2013 the Tax Collector did not hold any deposits or investments that were
considered to be a custodial risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk
At September 30, 2013 the Tax Collector did not hold any deposits or investments that were

consdered to be a credit risk.

NOTE 37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLAN

A. Plan Description

The Tax Collector participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS),-shaostig,

multiple employer defined benefit public retirement system administered by the State of
Florida Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide retirement and
survivor benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 121, Florit#etaestablishes
the authority for participant eligibility, contribution requirements, vesting eligibility and
benefit provisions. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary infaonatThe report may be obtained by writing to
the State of Florida Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg B, Tallahassee,
Florida, 323991560.

12



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 3i EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - (continued)

Employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 participating in the Pension Plan who retire at or after
age 62 with 6 years of credited service for regular risk or with 30 years of service regardless of
age, ae entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for county elected officials of their final
average compensation for each year of credited service; and for sygkciaftar age 55 with 6

years or with 25 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life, up to 3.0% for each year of credited service times their final average
compensation. Final average compensdtian t he empl oyeeds averag:eé
of salary earned during credited service. Vested employees may retire before age 62 for
regular risk and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for each year prior to normal
retirement age.

Employees hired on July 1, 2011 or later participating in the Pension Plan who retire at or after
age 65 with 8 years of credited service for regular risk or with 33 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable ntpfdr life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for county elected officials of their final
average compensation for each year of credited service; and for special risk, after age 60 with ¢
years or with 30 yearsf service and age 57 or after 30 years of special risk service regardless
of age, or after 33 years of any creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life. Vested employees may retire before age 62 for regular rigband special

risk and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for each year prior to normal
retirement age.

FRS also provides death and disability benefits andafdsting adjustments. Generally,
membership is compulsory for all fitime and partime employees.

B. Funding Policy

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of
the Florida LegislatureEmployees are required to contribute 3% of their earnings to
retirement. The ratedor employeesas a percentage of gross earnings, are as follows:

13



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 317 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

10/1/2012  7/1/20B
through through
6/30/208 9/30/208

Regular employees 5.18% 6.95%
Elected county officials 10.22% 33.0%%
Senior Management 6.30% 18.3%%6
Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP 5.4%% 12.8%%6

Chapter 121 Florida Statutes estsifeés the authority for participant eligibility, contribution
requirements, vesting eligibility and benefit provisions. For the period October 1, 2011 through
September 30, 2013 the total payroll for all employees was $283,622 and the retirement
contriut i ons for all empl oyeesd covered by t he
2013, 2012 and 2011 were $25,720, $19,217 and $33,563 respectively, which is equal to the
required contributions. These contributions represented 9.07% of covered fomytial

current year.

NOTE 417 CHANGES IN LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of the changes in lkd@gn obligations of the Tax Collector for the
year ended September 30, 2013:
Balance Balance
9/30/2A2  Increases Decreases _ 9/30/20L3

Accumulated compensated
absences $ 10,665 $ 5,107 $ o $ 15,772

Accrued compensated absences represent the vested portion of accrued vacation and sick leave. Se
1 for a summary of the Tax Collectorés policy
compensated absences relate only to hours earned,ngsadaalable Accordingly, only the net changes

in compensated absences are presented.

The portion of compensated absences liability estimated to be paid during the next year (current
portion) is $3,943.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 517 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Tax Collector is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees goubtite or damage to
property of others. The Tax Collector participates in the risk management program through the

Gulf County Board of County Commissioners, which uses commercial insurance to cover certain
risks from loss.

The Board obtained commerciakurance against losses for the following types of risk:
Real and personal property damage

Public employeebs bond

Wor kersd compensation

General and automobile liability

O¢ O¢ O¢ O«
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - TAX COLLECTOR

COMBININ G STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Assets:
Cash and caskquivalents

Total assets

Liabilities & Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to individuals

Due to othegovernments

Due to Board of Count€ommissioners

Total Liabilities

Total

Hunting & Tourist Agency

Taxes Tag Fishing Development Funds
$ 218396 $ 8374 $ 74 3 2 % 226,846
218,396 8,374 74 2 226,846
4,891 d d o) 4,891
187,105 d d o) 187,105
7,279 8,374 d o) 15,653
19,121 d 74 2 19,197
$ 218396 $ 8374 $ 74 $ 2 $ 226,846
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S MANAGEMENT LETT

To the Honorable Shirley Jenkins
Gulf County Tax Collector
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited the specpirpose financial statements of the Gulf County, Florida, Tax Collector
as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereoly dated Ma
21, 2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards, and
the standards applicable to financial audits contain€@biwernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United Staté§e have i ssued our I ndepende
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters. Disclosures in that
report, which is dated May 21, 2014, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 1(Raf€s of the Auditor
General,which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, whismbt included in the aforementioned

A

auditordos report.

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual inancial audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to the extent considered necessary,
other than for those comments repeated in the Report on Internal Control over financial reporting and
on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of FialaBtatements Performed in

Accordance witlGovernment Auditing Standards.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investmentioffpnds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Tax Collector complied with Section 218.415,
Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management

letter any findings and recamendations to improve financial management. In connection with our
audit, we did not have any such recommendations.
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Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions
of contracts, graragreements, or abuse, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less thal
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
findings.

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, reguimat the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Tax Collector
was estalished by the Constitution of the State of Florida, Article VIII, Section 1(d). The Tax
Collector has no component units.

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Floridandée and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida

Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, and applicable management and is not intende
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S REPORT ON I NTERNAL CON
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Shirley J. Jenkins
Gulf County Tax Collector
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States o
America and the standards applicable to financial statements contatBedémment Auditing
Standardsssued ly the Comptroller General of the United States, the fund financial statements of the
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information a&tiieCounty, Florida Tax Collector

(the ATax Collectoro), as of ahicHcolfedively tommisey e a r
the Tax Collectorés fund financial statements

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

I n planning and performing our audit of the f
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposxpfessing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expres
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tax

Col |l ectnalcamtsol. i nt er

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies anddhefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be ahateaknesses.

A deficiency in internal contraxists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, ot
detect and correct, misstatements on &lyrbasis. Amaterial weakness a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
materi al mi sstatement of the entitybs financi
corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses to be material weaknesse1(81303).
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethee Tax Col |l ect or 6s f i
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effecon the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion

on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no ingtinoasompliance or other

matters that are required to be reported u@®rernment Auditing Standards.

Response to Findings

The Tax Collectorb6s response to the findings
schedule of findings andsep ons e s . The Tax Coll ectordés resp:
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express non opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrilgegbope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Tax Coll ectordés internal control or on compl:
in accordance witlbovernment Auditing Standardsn consi dering the entit
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Voree CR2 LCC

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014

22



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA i TAX COLLECTOR
FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

13-01 (Prior year 101 and 1101) Lackof Segregation of dutiésSeparation of certain accounting

and administrative duties among employees, which is recommended as an effective internal control
procedure, was not adequate. The limited number of employees precludes proper segregatesn of duti
in the Tax Collectorodos office. We recommend
employees, that mitigating procedures including additional oversight with regard to certain duties be
performed regularly to reduce the risks caused isyidlck of segregation of duties.

Management DBue to theslimited umber of employees, it is virtually impossible to
maintain complete separation of accounting and administrative duties among employees. However,
every effort is being made te@mplish effective internal procedures.

13-02 (Prior year 1202) Significant adjustments to the financial records were made in order for the
financial statements to conform to generally accepted accounting principles.

Ma nage me nt DWe reakzeahatadaailyeour internal control system should be designed in a
manner that ensures the accuracy of the financial statements and that the Auditors should not have to
recommend journal entries to see that they conform to generally accepted accourtiptggritVe

do not feel that in the near future the benefits derived from investing in the resources necessary for us
to implement an effective internal control system would outweigh the cost of those resources.

13-03 (Prior year 1203) Inadequatelesign of internal control over the preparation of the financial
statements being audited.

Ma n age me nt DGurAuditsrpassmsisus with the preparation of our financial statements. We
do not feel that in the near future the benefits derived fnmesting in the resources necessary for us
to prepare our own financial statements would outweigh the cost of those resources.

The Tax Collectordés responses to the findings
audit t he Teaponsds arld bhceardingly; viesexpress no opinion on them.
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSOG REPORT

To the Honorable Mitch Burke
Gulf County Property Appraiser
Gulf County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We haveaudited the accompanying fund financial statements of the major fund of the Gulf
Count vy, FIl orida Property Appraiser (the AAppr
30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectinatyism® the
Appraiserés fund financial statements as | i st

Management 6s Responsibility for the Financi al
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance ith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from nmaitssiatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

|l ndependent Auditords Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally acoegtee United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contaiGm/énnment
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaisaeable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depentt en audi t or
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal c¢ont rrand faireresentatiom of the fmantiah e e n
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
Accordingly, we expess no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemen



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position othe fund of the Property Appraiser as of September 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the general
fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally aacépéd
United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the Gulf County,
Florida Property Appraiser and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position
of Gulf County, Florida as of September 30, 2013, and the changes in its financial position for
the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government AuditingStandards

In accordance witlsovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report datéaly

21, 2014 on our consideration of the Appraise
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions afidaregulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not

to provide an opimn on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance @ithernment Auditing Standards
considering Appraiseros internal control over

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPERTY APPRAISER

SPECIAL-PURPOSE BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

General
Fund
ASSETS _
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3376
Total Assets 3.376
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities o
Due to Board of County Commissioners 3,376
Total Liabilities 3.376
Fund Balances o)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 3,376

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPERTY APPRAISER

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

General
Fund
REVENUES _
Interest and other income $ o)
Total Revenues o)
EXPENDITURES
General government
Personal services 327,732
Operating expenditures 61,961
Total Expenditures 389,693

Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under) expenditures (389,693

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers from Bard of County Commissioners 393,069
Transferdo Board of County Commissioners (3,376)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 389,693
Net change in fund balances o)
Fund balances- beginning o)
Fund balances- ending $ o)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA
PROPERTY APPRAISER

SPECIAL-PURPOSE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL T GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Variance with Final

Budget Amounts Actual Budget Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest and other income$ 0o $ 0o $ 0o $ )
Total revenues o) o) o) o)
Expenditures:
General Government
Personal services 320,305 328,597 327,732 865
Operating expenditures 61,472 61,472 61,961 (489)
Capital outlay 3,000 3,000 o} 3,000
Total expenditures 384,777 393,069 389,693 3,376
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (384,777 _ (393,069 (389,693 3,376

Other financing

sources (uses)
Transfers from Board of County

Commissioners 384,777 393,069 393,069 0
Transfers t@Board of County
Commissioners o) o) (3,376) (3,376)
Total other financing
Sources (uses) 384,777 393,069 389,693 (3,379
Net change in fund balances o} o} o} o}
Fund balances- beginning o o o} o)
Fund balances- ending $ o $ o 3 0o $ o)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
5



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Property Appraiser of Gulf County, Florida is an elected ConstitutiofiabObf Gulf

County pursuant to Article VIII, Section (1) of tk®nstitution of the State of FlorideFor

financial statement and reporting purposes, the Property Appraiser is a separate constitutional
officer as provided for by Chapter 218, Florigtutes. The Property Appraiser is considered

to be a part othe primary government of Gulf County, Florida and the financial information is
included i n Guwide fin@rzial statgménds. count y

These specigburpose financial statements indé only the balances and activity of the
Property Appraiserodos office. They have be
Section 10.557Rules of the Auditor General for Local Government Entity aualitd,are not
intended to be a complete presentation of the financial position of the County, or the

changes in financial position or where applicable, cash flows, thereof, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The operations of the Property Appraiser are funded by the Gulf County Board of County
Commissioners (Board). The receipts from the Board are recorded as other financing sources
on the Property Appraiserods fipsanoi ahesBast
financial statements. Any excess of revenues and other financial sources received over
expenditures are remitted to the Board at year end.

The accounting policies of the Property Appraiser conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, as applicable to governments.

B. Basis of Presentatiori Fund Accounting

Accounts are organized on the basis of fund types, each of which is considered to be a separat
accounting entity.The operations of eadind are accounted for with a separate set of self
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, revenegpamitures

as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds
based orthe purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities
are controlled. Theroperty Appraiseutilizes the following fund types:



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fundi The general fund is the general operating fund of the Property Appraiser. Itis
used to account for all financial resources;ept for those required to be accounted for in
other funds.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements and relates to the timing of the measurements made,
regardless of the measurement foapplied.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the modified accrual basis c
accounting for govermental funds and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognizeden they become both measurable and available to

finance expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is
incurred, if measurable, except for principal and interest or-eng obligationswhich is

recorded when due.

The Property Appraiser considers receivable collected within 60 days after year end to be
available and susceptible to accrual as revenudwafurrent year. Charges for services and
interest earned are susceptible to accrual.

D. Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets atetfiong
liabilities associated with a fund are determined dyrieasurement focus. The general fund is
accounted for on a spending or Afinanci al
generally, only current assets and current liabilities are included in the balance sheet. General
fund operating statementsggent increases (revenues and other financing sources) and
decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they
present a summary of sources and uses of

E. Budgetary Reguirements

Florida Statutes, Chapter 195.087 govern the preparation, adoption and administration of the
annual budget of the Property Appraiser. The budget and subsequent budget amendments of
the Property Appraiser are submitted to the Florida Depauttiof Revenue (FDOR) for

approval. A copy of the budget is also provided to the Board.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Line item expenditures in excess of budget are authorized to the extent that total expenditures
do not exceed the total budgeted expenditures. Budget transfers between appropriation
categories (personal services, operating expenditungialoautiay, and debt service) must be
approved by FDOR. Transfers between expenditure items within the same appropriation
category do not need approval by FDOR. The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basi:
of accounting. General fund appr@ions lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent they
have not been expended.

F. Capital Assets

Tangible personal property is recorded as expenditures in the general fund at the time an asset
is acquired. Assets acquired by the Property Appraare capitalized at cost in the capital

asset accounts of the County. The Property Appraiser maintains custodial responsibility for the
capital assets used by his office.

G. Liability for Compensated Absences

Permanent fultime employees of the Prefly Appraiser accrue sick leave based upon pay
periods worked and earned vacation time related to length of employment with the Property
Appraiserdos office. The vacation and sick
payment for vacation aick leave is made at termination.

H. Related Organizationsi Common Expenses

Certain expenditures, which are common to the Board and all Constitutional Officers, are
reported as expenses of the Board and, therefore, are not budgeted by or allobat&dxo t

Coll ector. These expenses relating to the
o] Occupancy costs

o] Janitorial services

o] Utilities (except telephone)

0 Property insurance

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management

to make use of estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosur
of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the fialgteitements, and the reported
amount of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from estimates.



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. Subseguent Events

The Property Appraiser evaluated subsequent events through May 21, 2014, the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued. The Property Appidiset tiave any
subsequent events requiring disclosure or recording in these financial statements.

K. Fund Balance

GASB Statement 5% Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Funds Type Definitvass
implemented as of October 1, 2009. This Statementresxiine fund balance for

governmental funds to be reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes
for which amounts in those funds can bergp Categories for fund balance are as follows;
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned. For more information, see the
Countywide note on fund balance.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

All Property Appraiser depositories are banks designated by the State Treasurer as qualified
public depositories. Chapter 280, Fl ori da
provides procedures for public depositories to insure monieskslzand savings and loans

are collateralized with the Treasurer as an agent for the public entities. All Property Appraiser
cash consists of checking accounts and intdresting time deposits in a local bank.

Investments
TheProperty Appraiser heldho investments at September 30, 2013

Interest Rate Risk
At September 30, 2013, the Property Appraiser did not hold any investments that were
considered to be an interest rate risk.

Credit Risk
At September 30, 2013 the Property Appraiser dichotit any investments that were
considered to be a credit risk.

Custodial Risk
At September 30, 2013 the Property Appraiser did not hold any deposits or investments that

were considered to be a custodial risk.
9



GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - continued

Concentration of Credit Risk
At September 30, 2013 the Property Appraiser did not hold any deposits or investments that
were cosidered to be a credit risk.

NOTE 317 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLAN
A. Plan Description

The Property Appraiser participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS).sh&osy,
multiple employer defined benefit public retirement system administered by the State of
Florida Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, to provide retirement and
survivor benefits to participating public employees. Chapter 121, Floritl#etaestablishes
the authority for participant eligibility, contribution requirements, vesting eligibility and
benefit provisions. FRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary infaonatThe report may be obtained by writing to
the State of Florida Division of Retirement, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg B, Tallahassee,
Florida, 323991560.

Employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 participating in the Pension Plan who retire at or after
age62 with 6 years of credited service for regular risk or with 30 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for countydetdfitgals of their final

average compensation for each year of credited service; and for special risk, after age 55 with ¢
years or with 25 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit payable
monthly for life, up to 3.0% foeach year of credited service times their final average
compensation. Final average compensation
of salary earned during credited service. Vested employees may retire before age 62 for
regular risk and5 for special risk, and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for
each year prior to normal retirement age.

Employees hired on July 1, 2011 or later participating in the Pension Plan who retire at or after
age 65 with 8 years of creditedgee for regular risk or with 33 years of service regardless of
age, are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% for regular
employees, 2.0% for senior management, and 3.0% for county elected officials of their final
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

RETIREMENT PLAN (continued)

average compensation for each year of credited service; and for special risk, after age 60 with ¢
years or with 30 years of service and age 57 or after 30 years of special risk service regardless
of age, or after 33 years of any creditable service dideento a retirement benefit payable

monthly for life. Vested employees may retire before age 65 for regular risk and 60 for special
risk and receive retirement benefits that are reduced 5.0% for each year prior to normal
retirement age.

FRS also pvides death and disability benefits and aafsliving adjustments. Generally,
membership is compulsory for all fitiime and partime employees.

B. Funding Policy

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in satsook
the Florida LegislatureEmployees contribute 3% of their earnings to retiremé&he rates
for employersas a percentage of gross earnings, are as follows:
10/1/2012 7/1/2Q3
through through
6/30/20L3 9/30/20L3

Regular employees 5.18% 6.93%
Elected county officials 10.22% 33.03%
Senior Management 6.30% 18.3%%6
DROP plan participants 5.4%% 12.8%%6

Chapter 121 Florida Statutes establishes the authority for participant eligibility, contribution
requirements, vesting eligibility and benefit provisions. For the period October 1, 2012 through
September 30, 2013 the total payroll fdreanployees was $235,483 and the retirement
contributions for al/|l empl oyeesd coverage
2012 and 2011 were $25,776, $18,185 and $31,114 respectively, which is equal to the
required contributions. These cohutions represented 10.9% of covered payroll for the

current year.
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GULF COUNTY, FLORIDA - PROPERTY APPRAISER
NOTES TO SPECIAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

NOTE 47T RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Appraiser is exposedsarious risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or damage to
property of others. The Property Appraiser participates in the risk management program through

the Gulf County Board of County Commissioners, which uses commercial insurance to cover
certain risks from loss.

The Board obtained commercial insurance against losses for the following types of risk:

Real and personal property damage

Publ i c ebopd oyeed

Wor kersdéd compensation
General and automobile liability

O« O¢ O¢ O«
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TOR6S MANAGEMENT LETT

To the Honorable Mitch Burke
Gulf County Property Appraiser
Gulf County, Florida

We have audited the specalrpose financial statements of the Gulf County, Florida, Property
Appraiser as of anfbr the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon
dated May 21, 2014.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards, and
the standards applicable to financial audits contain€@biwernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Wehaweessl our | ndependent Aud
Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters. Disclosures in that
report, which is dated May 21, 2014 should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10R86s of the Auditor
General,which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of
Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not includdtie aforementioned

A

auditordos report.

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial auditeport. Corrective actions have been taken to the extent considered necessary,
other than for those comments repeated in the Report on Internal Control over financial reporting and
on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statdpegfasmed in

Accordance witlGovernment Auditing Standards.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Property Appraiser complied with Section 218.415,
Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management

letter any findings and recommendasdn improve financial management. In connection with our
audit, we did not have any such recommendations.
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Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions
of contracts, grant agreements, or aulat have an effect on the financial statements that is less than
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such
findings.

Section 10.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the nafiiat title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Property
Appraiser was established by theriStitution of the State of Florida, Article VIII, Section 1(d). The
Property Appraiser has no component units.

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senatethrd-lorida House of Representative, the Florida

Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, and applicable management and is not intende
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Voer CTR2 Ll

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 2014
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Vance CPA, LLC

Certified Public Accountant
219B Avenue E

Apalachicola, FL 32320
Tel. (888) 53164080 Fax (866) 4067422

| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORSOG REPORT ON | NTERNAL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mitch Burke
Gulf County Property Appraiser
Gulf County, Florida

We haveaudited the accompanying spegquairpose financial statements of the major fund of the Gulf
County, Florida, Property Appraiser, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and have issut
our report thereon dated May 21, 2014, which describes tblatspeciaburpose financial statements

have been prepared for the purpose of complying with section 2 EoB@la Statutesand Chapter
10.577(3) Rules of the Auditor General for Local Government Entity Audfite.conducted our audit

in accordance wht auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits containgdamernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financi&eporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Property
Appraiserodos internal control over financial r
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstancéisequrpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Property Appraiserodos internal control

A deficiency in internal contraxists when the design or operatidraacontrol does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, ot
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basiwatarial weaknesis a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
materi al mi sstatement of the entitybés financi
corrected on a timely basis. significant deficiencys a deficiency, or a combinatiaf deficiencies,

in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attentior
by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the fagtayr of

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal contritiat we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and other matters

As part of obtaining reasonabl e assu-puaposee abo
financial satements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of spec@dse financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliaea©r other matters that are required to be reported @wlesrnment

Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Property Appraiser, management, the
Board of County Commissioners and Biate of Florida Office of the Auditor General, and

appropriate federal and state awarding agencies entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Voree CR2 LCC

Vance CPA LLC
May 21, 20%
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